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ASSETS						

Cash and balances with treasury banks	 6	  3,518,863 	  2,430,525
Balances with other banks	 7	  190,823 	  424,573
Lendings to financial institutions	 8	  4,036,358 	  4,619,591
Investments - net	 9	  36,785,844 	  62,631,024
Advances	 10	  26,564,842 	  19,281,888
Operating fixed assets	 11	  1,766,303 	  1,556,804
Deferred tax assets 		 -   	 -  
Other assets	 12	  2,169,421 	  1,346,693		

 75,032,454 	  92,291,098	

LIABILITIES						

Bills payable	 13	  362,522 	  176,125
Borrowings	 14	  16,758,368 	  48,602,402
Deposits and other accounts	 15	  45,756,220 	  31,469,652
Sub-ordinated loans		 -   	 -  
Deferred tax liabilities - net	 16	  9,511 	  207,256
Other liabilities	 17	  818,946 	  747,475		

 63,705,567 	  81,202,910

NET ASSETS		  11,326,887 	  11,088,188				

REPRESENTED BY						

Share capital	 18	  10,000,000 	  10,000,000
Reserves		  460,647 	  327,466
Unappropriated profit		  1,241,433 	  709,867		

 11,702,080 	  11,037,333			

(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of investments - net of related
deferred tax	 19	  (375,193)	  50,855		

 11,326,887 	  11,088,188

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 20

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sindh Bank Limited		
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2013

	2013	 2012	
Note	  (Rupees in '000)

Sindh Bank Limited		
Profit and Loss Account 		
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Mark-up / Return / Profit / Interest earned	 21	  6,329,381	  6,141,198
Mark-up / Return / Profit / Interest expensed	 22	  4,071,643	  4,102,783
Net mark-up / profit / interest income		  2,257,738	  2,038,415			

Provision against non-performing loans and advances	 10.3	  -  	  -   
Provision for diminution in the value of investments	 9.3	  17,292	  1,069	
Bad debts written off directly		  -  	  -  		

 17,292	  1,069
Net mark-up / profit / interest income after provisions		  2,240,446	  2,037,346				

Non mark-up / interest income						

Fee, commission and brokerage income		  162,594	  98,820
Dividend income		  179,639	  124,667
Income from dealing in foreign currencies		  43,761	  44,353
Gain on sale of securities - net	 23	  470,873	  257,500
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investments				

classified as held-for-trading		  - 	  -  
Other income	 24	  2,784	  1,377
Total non mark-up / interest income		  859,651	  526,717		

 3,100,097	  2,564,063
Non mark-up  / interest expense						

Administrative expenses	 25	  2,141,712	  1,278,403
Other provisions / write offs 		  4,542	  -  
Other charges	 26	  443	  29
Total non mark-up / interest expenses		  2,146,697	  1,278,432		

 953,400	  1,285,631
Extraordinary / unusual items		  -  	  -  
Profit before taxation		  953,400	  1,285,631			

Taxation - Current 		  255,830	  275,709	
- Prior years		 -  	 - 		
- Deferred	  	 31,666	  122,946	

27	  287,496	  398,655			

Profit after taxation		  665,904	  886,976						

(Rupees) 		

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Restated)	 28	  0.67 	  0.89						

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

	2013	 2012	
Note	  (Rupees in '000)

	2013	  2012 		
Restated	

Note	 (Rupees in '000)
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Sindh Bank Limited		
Statement of Comprehensive Income	
For the year ended December 31, 2013

	2013	 2012	
Note	  (Rupees in '000)

	2013	  2012 		
Restated	

Note	 (Rupees in '000)

Profit after taxation		  665,904 	 886,976 

Other comprehensive income							

Actuarial losses / (gains) on remeasurement of 					
defined benefit obligation	 31 	  (1,157)	  796 							

Total comprehensive income for the year transferred to equity		  664,747 	  887,772 							

Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity							

(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of investments		  (655,459)	 211,390 
Deferred tax on revaluation of investments		  229,411 	  (73,988)		

 (426,048)	  137,402 							

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

President & Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman of  the Board	 Director	 Director

Cash flow from operating activities			
Profit before taxation		  953,400 	  1,285,631 
Less: Dividend income		  (179,639)	  (124,667)		

 773,761 	  1,160,964 
Adjustments 				
Depreciation	 11.2	  232,544 	  116,707 
Amortisation 	 11.3	  18,049 	  12,115 
Provision against non-performing advances		  -   	  -   
Provision for diminution in the value of investments	 9.3	  17,292 	  1,069 
Other provisions / write offs		  4,542 	  -   
Gain on disposal of fixed assets		  (1,759)	  1,108 		

 270,668 	  130,999 		
 1,044,429 	  1,291,963 

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets				
Lendings to financial institutions		  583,233 	  6,285,819 
Advances		  (7,282,954)	  (12,022,558)
Other assets (excluding advance taxation)		  (807,377)	  (331,321)		

 (7,507,098)	  (6,068,060)
Increase / (decrease)  in operating liabilities				
Bills payable		  186,397 	  133,874 
Borrowings 		  (31,844,034)	  35,589,755 
Deposits and other accounts		  14,286,568 	  7,951,912 
Other liabilities  		  70,313 	  293,138 		

 (17,300,756)	  43,968,679 		
 (23,763,425)	  39,192,582 

Income tax paid		  (268,724)	  (319,745)
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities		  (24,032,149)	  38,872,837 

Cash flow from investing activities				
Net investment in available-for-sale securities - net		  25,892,310 	  (36,379,272)
Net investment in held-to-maturity securities		  (719,296)	  40,103 
Dividend income received		  174,389 	  124,776 
Investment in operating fixed assets		  (471,206)	  (1,113,234)
Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets	 11.4	  10,540 	  10,554 
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities		  24,886,737 	  (37,317,073)

Cash flow from financing activities					
Dividend Paid		  -   	  (600,000)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 		  854,588 	  955,764 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		  2,855,098 	  1,899,334 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	 29	  3,709,686 	  2,855,098 							

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sindh Bank Limited		
Statement of Cash Flows		
For the year ended December 31, 2013

	2013	 2012	
Note	  (Rupees in '000)

	2013	  2012 	
Restated	

Note	 (Rupees in '000)



President & Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman of  the Board	 Director	 Director

Sindh Bank Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Balance as at January 1, 2012	 10,000,000 	 149,912 	 599,649 	 10,749,561 								

Interim cash dividend at Rs. 0.60 per share paid for	  -   	  -   	  (600,000)	  (600,000)
 	 the year 2012								

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2012 (Restated)	  -   	  -   	  886,976 	  886,976 

Other comprehensive income (Restated)	  -   	  -   	  796 	  796 								

Total comprehensive income for the year ended	  -   	  -   	  887,772 	  887,772 	
December 31, 2012																

Transfer to statutory reserve	  -   	  177,554 	  (177,554)	  -   								

Balance as at December 31, 2012 (Restated)	  10,000,000 	  327,466 	  709,867 	  11,037,333 
 								

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2013	  -   	  -   	  665,904 	  665,904 

Other comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  (1,157)	  (1,157)						

Total comprehensive income for the year ended	  -   	  -   	  664,747 	  664,747 	
December 31, 2013																

Transfers					
Transfer to statutory reserve	  -   	  133,181 	  (133,181)	  -   								

Balance as at December 31, 2013	  10,000,000 	  460,647 	  1,241,433 	  11,702,080

Reserves
Issued, 

subscribed 
and paid-up 
share capital

Statutory*
Revenue

Unappropriated
profit

Total

--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

* 	Under section 21 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, an amount not less than 20% of the profit 			
is to be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund equals the amount of the paid 			
up capital.								

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1	 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS													

1.1	 Sindh Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 29, 2010 as a public 
unlisted company and is engaged in Commercial Banking, Corporate and Investment related 
activities. The Bank is currently operating through two hundred branch including ten sub branches 
(2012: one hundred and sixty branches including ten sub branches) in Pakistan. The Bank's 
registered office is located at 3rd floor, Federation House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road, Clifton, 
Karachi.						

1.2	 The Bank is 100% owned by the Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department.						

1.3	 JCR –VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has assigned medium to long term entity rating of ‘AA-’ 
(Double A Minus) with a “Stable outlook”, and short term rating of ‘A-1+’ (A-One plus) to the Bank.						

2	 BASIS OF PRESENTATION														

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the Banking 
system to Islamic modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to 
time. Permissible forms of trade-related modes of financing include purchase of goods by Banks 
from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up in price on deferred 
payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in 
these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised and 
the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon.													

3	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE														

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified 
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by the 
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In 
case requirements differ, the provisions and directions issued under Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan 
and SECP shall prevail.														

The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard 
(IAS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and International Accounting 
Standard (IAS) 40, 'Investment Property' for DFIs through BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 
26, 2002. Further, according to the notification of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures" has not been made applicable for financial institutions. Accordingly, the requirements 
of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. 
However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of 
various circulars issued by SBP.														

IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Bank's accounting period beginning on or after 
January 1, 2009. All banking companies in Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial 
statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD Circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006, 
'Revised Forms of Annual Financial statements', effective from the accounting year ended December 
31, 2006. The management of the Bank believes that as the SBP has defined the segment 
categorisation in the above mentioned circular, the SBP requirements prevail over the requirements 
specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in these financial statements is 
based on the requirements laid down by the SBP.

Sindh Bank Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013



	SBP vide its BSD Circular No. 07 dated April 20, 2010 has clarified that for the purpose of preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with International Accounting Standard - 1 (Revised), 
'Presentation of Financial Statements', two statement approach shall be adopted i.e. separate 
'Profit and Loss Account' and 'Statement of Comprehensive Income' shall be presented, and 
Balance Sheet shall be renamed as 'Statement of Financial Position'. Furthermore, the surplus/(deficit) 
on revaluation of available for sale (AFS) securities only, maybe included in the 'Statement of 
Comprehensive Income'. However, it should continue to be shown separately in the statement of 
financial position below equity. Accordingly, the above requirements have been adopted in the 
preparation of these financial statements.

3.1	 Standard, amendment or interpretation to published approved accounting standards							

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards	
that are effective in the current period however not adopted by Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP):														

Following new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations 
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 but have not yet 
been adopted by ICAP:	

Title of Standard	 Effective for		
accounting		

periods beginning		
on or after		

IFRS 1  First-time Adoption of International Financial 	 January 01, 2013		
Reporting Standards 	

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 	 January 01, 2013		

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 	 January 01, 2013		

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 	 January 01, 2013		

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements 	 January 01, 2013	

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards, 	
that are not yet effective:													

Following new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations 
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 but are considered 
not to be relevant or did not have any significant effect on the entity's operations and are, therefore, 
not detailed in these financial statements:	

Title of Standard	 Effective for	
accounting	

periods beginning	
on or after		

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments	 January 1, 2015		

IFRIC 21 Levies	 January 1, 2014			
- Amendments to  							

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting	 January 1, 2014				

IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 	 January 1, 2014		

IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities	 January 1, 2014		

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities	 January 1, 2014		

IFAS - Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits	 January 1, 2014

4	 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT													

4.1	 Accounting convention														

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that 
certain investments and commitments in respect of foreign exchange contracts and futures 
contracts are measured at fair values. 													

4.2	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Bank operates. The financial statements are presented in 
Pak Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency. 						

4.3	 Change in accounting policy														

During the current year, the bank changed its accounting policy due to revision in IAS 19 - 
Employee Benefits. Accordingly, the change in accounting policy and its related impacts are 
disclosed in note 5.9 to these financial statements.						

4.4	 Critical accounting estimates and judgments													

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.						

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant affect on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements are as follows:

	i)	 classification and impairment against investments (notes 5.4 and 9).						

ii)	 classification and provision against advances (notes 5.5 and 10).						

iii)	 income taxes (note 5.8)													

iv)	 depreciation and amortization / useful lives of operating fixed assets (notes 5.6 and 11)						

v)	 staff retirement benefits (note 5.9)													

vi)	 fair value of derivatives (note 5.17)

5	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES						

5.1	 The accounting policies adopted by the Bank and applied in the preparation of these financial 
statements are set out below:													

5.2	 Cash and cash equivalents														

For the preparation of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances 
with treasury banks and balances with other banks excluding any term deposits with original term 
of greater than three months.						

5.3	 Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions (Repo / Reverse repo)							

The Bank enters into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified 
period of time. These are recorded as under:



(a)	 Sale of securities under repurchase agreement						

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (repo) remain on the balance sheet as investments 
and the counter party liability is included in borrowings from financial institutions. The difference 
between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest / mark-up / return	
expense and accrued over the period using the effective interest rate method.					

(b)	 Purchase of securities under resale agreement						

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repo) are recorded as lendings to 
financial institutions. These transactions are accounted for on the settlement date. The difference 
between the purchase and resale price is recognized as mark-up income over the period of the 
agreement using the effective interest rate method.	

5.4	 Investments													

The Bank classifies its investments as follows: 						

(a)	 Held-for-trading												

These are securities which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in
market prices, interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which
a pattern of short-term profit trading exists.

(b)	 Held-to-maturity													

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank 		
has the positive intent and ability to hold till maturity.	

(c)	 Available-for-sale													

These are investments, other than those in subsidiaries and associates, that do not fall under the 
held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories. 													

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by 
regulations or market convention are recognized at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which 
the Bank commits to purchase or sell the investment.							

Investments other than those categorized as 'held-for-trading' are initially recognized at fair value 
which includes transaction costs associated with the investment. Investments classified as 'held-
for-trading' are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit 
and loss account.														

Quoted securities, other than those classified as held-to-maturity are subsequently stated at fair 
value.														

Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. Unquoted equity securities 
are valued at lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is calculated 
with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial 
statements. Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, 
if any.	

Unrealized surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of quoted securities classified as 'available-for-
sale' is disclosed below the shareholders' equity in the statement of financial position. Unrealized 
gain / loss arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are classified as 'held-for-trading' is 
taken to the profit and loss account.							
Cost of investment is determined on moving average basis.

5.5	 Advances 														

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Specific and general provisions 
are made based on appraisal of the loan portfolio that takes into account the requirements of the 
Prudential Regulation issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. The provisions against non-performing 
advances are charged to the profit and loss account. Advances are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery after explicit approval from the Board of Directors.

5.6	 Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization						

(a)	 Tangible assets - owned													

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.													

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account applying the straight line method at the rates 
specified in note 11 to the financial statements after taking into account residual value, if significant. 
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
at each date of Statement of Financial Position. Depreciation is charged from the month the asset 
is put to use till the month of its disposal. Assets provided to employees are depreciated as per 
respective employment terms.						

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred. 						

Gain or loss on disposal, if any, are recognized in the profit and loss account in the year in which 
they arise.												

(b)	 Capital work-in-progress													

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure 
connected with specific assets incurred during installation and related advances there against, if 
any, are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets 
become available for use. 												

(c)	 Intangibles 													

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method from the date an 
asset is available for use, whereby the cost of an intangible asset is amortised over its estimated 
useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow to the Bank. The useful life and 
amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of Statement of 
Financial Position.

Impairment loss in respect of investments classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity is 
recognized on the basis of management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that may have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
investments. A significant or prolonged decline in market value of an equity security is considered 
as an objective evidence of impairment, significant means 20% decline in market value as 
compared to carrying value and prolonged means twelve months decline in fair value of an equity 
investment below its cost. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance certificates is made 
as per the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case 
of impairment of available-for- sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognized 
directly in surplus on revaluation of securities on the Statement of Financial Position below equity 
is removed there from and recognized in the profit and loss account. For investments classified 
as held-to-maturity, the impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account. 						

Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the year in which 
they arise.



	where the past service costs were recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the average 
period until the benefits became vested, and if the benefits were already vested, following the 
introduction of or changes to a scheme, past service costs were recognised immediately in profit 
and loss account;									

-	 interest on net defined benefit obligation (net of plan assets) in profit and loss account, which is 
calculated using the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation or asset, and 
expected returns in plan assets will no longer be recognised in profit and loss account; and					

The above changes have been accounted for in accordance with the requirement of IAS 19 - 
Employee Benefit (Revised), as required under IAS 8, such a change to applied retrospectively. The 
above restatement does not have any impact on the Statement of Financial Position. However, due 
to the above change in accounting policy, the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive 
Income and Statement of Changes in Equity have been restated in accordance with the requirement 
of IAS 8 and IAS 1.					

Had there been no change in accounting policy, due to recognition of actuarial gains and losses on 
defined benefit plan in accordance with IAS 19 (Revised), the following would have been	
the impacts for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013:				

Rs. in '000	
For the year ended December 31, 2012					

Other comprehensive income would have been lower by:	  (796)	
Profit after taxation would have been higher by:	  796 	
Basic and diluted earnings per share would have been higher by:	  0.001 	

For the year ended December 31, 2013					

Other comprehensive income would have been higher by:	  1,157 	
Profit after taxation would have been lower by:	  (1,157)	
Basic and diluted earnings per share would have been lower by:	  0.001 

5.10	 Provisions							
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each date of Statement 
of Financial Position and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.						

5.11	 Provision for off balance sheet obligations							
Provision for guarantees, claims and other off balance sheet obligations is made when the Bank 
has legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of amount can be made. 
Charge to profit and loss account is stated net of expected recoveries.

5.12	 Borrowings / deposits and their cost							
Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing / deposit costs are 
recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using the effective mark-up / 
interest rate method.

5.13	 Acceptances							
Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. 
The Bank expects most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with the reimbursement from 
the customers. Acceptances are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and are disclosed 
as contingent liabilities and commitments.

5.8	 Taxation														

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the 
profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity 
or in other comprehensive income. 														

Current														

Current tax is the tax payable on the expected taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date and, any adjustment to tax payable relating to prior 
years, after taking into consideration available tax credits, rebates, tax losses etc.							

Deferred														

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary difference 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. 														

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date.														

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefits will be realized. 													

5.9	 Staff retirement and other benefits													

(a)	 Defined contribution plan													

The Bank operates recognised contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to 
which equal contributions at the rate of 10 percent (2012: 8.33 percent) of basic salary are made 
by both the Bank and the employees. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit 
expense when they are due. 												

(b)	 Defined benefit scheme													

The Bank operates recognised gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who complete the 
prescribed eligibility period of service. Provision is made annually to meet the cost of such gratuity 
benefits on the basis of acturial recommendations.		

As disclosed in 4.3 to these financial statements, during the year the bank has changed its 
accounting policy in respect of recognition of actuarial gains and losses, past service costs and 
expected return on plan assets, whereby with effect from the current year, the bank has recognised:		

-	 actuarial gains and losses as they occur in other comprehensive income, instead of past	
policy, where actuarial gains and losses were immediately recognised as income	
or expense in the profit and loss account;

-	 all past service costs at the earlier of when the amendment or curtailment occurs and	
when the Bank has recognised related restructuring or termination benefits, instead of	
past policy,

5.7	 Impairment														

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each date of Statement of Financial Position to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized immediately in the financial statements. The resulting impairment loss is taken to 
the profit and loss account.



5.14	 Proposed dividend and transfers between reserves							

Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are required by law, made 
subsequent to the date of Statement of Financial Position are considered as non-adjusting events 
and are recorded in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 10, 'Events after the Balance Sheet Date' in the period in which they 
are approved / transfers are made.

5.15	 Revenue recognition	

-	 Mark-up / Interest on loans and advances and return on investments are recognized on a time 	
proportion basis using the effective interest rate method except that mark-up / interest on non-
performing advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP. Where debt securities are 
purchased at a premium or discount, such premium of discount is amortised through the profit 
and loss account over the remaining period of maturity.	

-	 Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the dividend 
is established.					

-	 Fees, brokerage and commission on letters of credit / guarantees and others is recognized on 
time proportion basis. 					

-	 Financial advisory fees is recognized when the right to receive the fees is established.					

-	 Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the year in 
which they arise.					

5.16	 Foreign currency translation							

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing 
at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated to Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Translation 
gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account.						

5.17	 Derivative financial instruments							

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which the 
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate 
valuation techniques. All derivative financial instruments are carried as assets where fair value 
is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative. Any changes in the fair value of derivative 
financial instruments are taken to the profit and loss.						

5.18	 Offsetting							

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial 
statements only when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends to 
either settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.19	 Dividend distribution and appropriation	

Dividends and other appropriations (except appropriations which are required by law) are recognized 
in the period in which these are approved.

5.20	 Earnings per share	

The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) which is calculated by dividing the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year / period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

			2013	 2012
6	 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

In hand		
-	 Local currency 	 6.1	  877,916 	  600,240 	
-	  Foreign currency 		  68,371 	  64,617 				

 946,287 	  664,857 	
With State Bank of Pakistan in									

-	 Local currency current account 	 6.2	  1,779,096 	  1,254,316 	
-	 Foreign currency current account 	 6.3	  12,185 	  2,582 	
-	 Foreign currency deposit account 			
- 	 Non Remunerative 	 6.4	  78,993 	  63,633 	
- 	 Remunerative 	 6.5	  233,294 	  189,928 				

 2,103,568 	  1,510,459 	
With National Bank of Pakistan in									

-	 Local currency current account 		  391,275 	  213,235 	
-	  Local currency PLS account 		  77,733 	  41,974 				

 469,008 	  255,209 				
 3,518,863 	  2,430,525

6.1	 This includes National Prize Bonds of Rs. 1.013 million (2012: Rs. 0.235 million).

6.2	 This represents statutory cash reserve maintained by the Bank with SBP i.e. a sum not less than 
such percentage of its time and demand liabilities in Pakistan as may be prescribed by the SBP.

6.3	 This represents US Dollar Settlement Account maintained with SBP.						

6.4	 This represent foreign currency cash reserve maintained with SBP equivalent to at least 5% of 
the Bank's foreign currency deposits mobilised under  the FE-25 scheme, which is kept under 
non-remunerative account.

6.5	 This represent foreign currency special cash reserve maintained with SBP equivalent to at least 
15% of the Bank's foreign currency deposits mobilised under the FE-25 scheme is maintained 
in remunerative account on which the bank is entitled to earn profit which is declared by SBP on 
a monthly basis. During the year, the SBP has not remunerated any return on deposit account.

		2013	 2012
7	 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS	 Note	 (Rupees in '000) 			

In Pakistan				
-	 On current account		  10,721 	  100 	
-	 On saving accounts	 7.1	  35,137 	  46,578 	

Outside Pakistan	
-	 On current accounts	 7.2	  144,965 	  377,895 				

 190,823 	  424,573

7.1	 This represents saving deposits with a commercial bank carrying profit at the rate of 7% per	
annum (2012: 6.00% to 8.50%).								

7.2	 This includes Rs. 86.342 million (2012: 366.324 million) held in Automated Investment Plans.	
This balance is current by nature and on increase in the balance above a specified amount, the 	
Bank is entitled to earn interest from the correspondent banks at agreed upon rates.



			2013	 2012
8	 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 				

Call money lendings	 8.2	  2,500,000 	  100,000 	
Term deposit receipt account	 8.3	  1,000,000 	  4,000,000 	
Repurchase agreement lending	 8.4	  536,358 	  519,591  		

8.1	  4,036,358 	  4,619,591 
8.1	 Particulars of lending		

In local currency		  4,036,358 	  4,619,591 	
In foreign currency		  -   	  -   			

 4,036,358 	  4,619,591

8.2	 This represents call money lending  to commercial banks carrying mark-up rate ranging from 	
11.5% to 12.00% per annum (2012: 13.00%).

8.3	 This represents term deposit account with a commercial bank carrying profit at the rate of 10.00% 	
per annum (2012: 12.50%), with a tenure of one year and having maturity from January 05, 2014 	
to May 31, 2014.

8.4	 Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions (Reverse Repo)

		2013	 2012	
Note	 Held by Bank	 Further given 	 Total	 Held by Bank	 Further given	 Total				

as collateral			 as collateral	
------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------			

Pakistan Investment Bonds	 8.4.1	  -   	  -     	  -   	  519,591 	  -        	 519,591 	

Term Finance Certificates	 8.4.2	  536,358 	  -     	  536,358	  -   	  -        	  -   		

 	 536,358 	  -     	  536,358	  519,591 	  -        	 519,591

8.4.1	 This repurchase lending agreement carried mark-up rate ranging from 9.90% to 10.20% per 
annum. Market value of securities held under these agreements amounted to Rs. 532.32 million.

8.4.2	 This repurchase lending agreement carry mark-up rate at 11.15% (2012: Nil) per annum with 
margin requirements of 30% (2012: Nil). Market value of securities held under these agreements 
amounts to Rs. 815.36 million (2012: Nil).

9	 INVESTMENTS - NET																				

2013			 2012
9.1	 Investments by Types	 Note	 Held by 	 Given as 	 Total	 Held by	 Given as	 Total				

Bank 	 collateral		 Bank	  collateral	
---------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------

	9.2.1	  2,589,149 	  12,831,647 	  15,420,796 	  18,541 	  3,373,461 	  3,392,002 	
9.2.2	  15,772,887 	  2,614,835 	  18,387,722 	  12,509,269 	  44,210,309 	  56,719,578 	
9.2.4	  1,375,489 	  -   	  1,375,489 	  783,538 	  -   	  783,538 	
9.2.5	  250,025 	  -   	  250,025 	  -   	  -   	  -   	
9.2.7	  -   	  -   	  -   	  48,857 	  -   	  48,857 	
9.2.8	  76,788 	  -   	  76,788 	  76,911 	  -   	  76,911 	
9.2.9	  367,756 	  -   	  367,756 	  750,000 	  -   	  750,000 		

 20,432,094 	  15,446,482 	  35,878,576 	  14,187,116 	  47,583,770 	  61,770,886

Available-for-sale securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market Treasury Bills
Listed Companies (ordinary shares)
Preference Shares - Listed
Listed Term Finance Certificates
Unlisted Term Finance Certificates
Mutual Funds / NIT (units / certificates)

Held-to-maturity securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Sukuk Certificates
Preference Shares - Listed
Preference Shares - Unlisted
Term Finance Certificates
Certificates of Investment

	9.2.1	  334,440 	  -   	  334,440 	  -   	  -   	  -   	
9.2.3	  425,000 	  -   	  425,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	
9.2.5	  249,961 	  -   	  249,961 	  -   	  -   	  -   	
9.2.6	  250,000 	  -   	  250,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	
9.2.7	  244,702 	  -   	  244,702 	  284,807 	  -   	  284,807 	

9.2.10	  -   	  -   	  -   	  500,000 	  -   	  500,000 		
 1,504,103 	  -   	  1,504,103 	  784,807 	  -   	  784,807 		

 21,936,197 	  15,446,482 	  37,382,679 	  14,971,923 	  47,583,770 	  62,555,693Total Investments at cost			

Provision for diminution in value	
of investments			

Investments (net of provisions)			

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of	
available-for-sale securities			

Total investments

	9.3	  (16,956)	  -   	  (16,956)	  (1,673)	  -   	  (1,673)			

 21,919,241 	  15,446,482 	  37,365,723 	  14,970,250 	  47,583,770 	  62,554,020 		

19	  (228,979)	  (350,900)	  (579,879)	  (25,164)	  102,168 	  77,004 		 		

21,690,262 	  15,095,582 	  36,785,844 	  14,945,086 	  47,685,938 	  62,631,024

			2013	 2012
9.2	 Investments by Segment	 Note	 ------- (Rupees '000) -------  			

Federal Government Securities	
-   Pakistan Investment Bonds	 9.2.1	  15,755,236 	  3,392,002	
-   Market Treasury Bills	 9.2.2	  18,387,722 	  56,719,578	
-   Sukuk Certificates	 9.2.3	  425,000 	  -   			

 34,567,958 	  60,111,580	
Fully Paid-up Ordinary Shares	
-   Listed Companies (ordinary shares)	 9.2.4	  1,375,489 	  783,538		

Preference Shares	
-   Listed Companies	 9.2.5	  499,986 	  -  	
-   Unlisted Companies 	 9.2.6	  250,000 	  -  			

 749,986 	  -  	
Term Finance Certificates	
-   Listed 	 9.2.7	  244,702 	  333,664	
-   Unlisted 	 9.2.8	  76,788 	  76,911			

 321,490 	  410,575	
Other Investments	
-   Mutual Funds (units / certificates)	 9.2.9	  367,756 	  750,000	
-   Certificates of Investment	 9.2.10	  -   	  500,000		

Total investments at cost		  37,382,679 	  62,555,693 	
Provision for diminution in value of investments	 9.3	  (16,956)	  (1,673)		

Investments (net of provisions)		 37,365,723 	  62,554,020 	
(Deficit) / Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale securities	 19	  (579,879)	  77,004 	
Total investments at market value		  36,785,844 	  62,631,024

9.2.1	 These securities have tenure of 5 to 10 years. The effective yield on these investmet	
ranges from 9.92% to 13% per annum (2012: 11.50% to 13.00%) with maturities from May 2016 
to July 2022.

9.2.2	 These securities are for a maximum period of one year. The effective yield on these investment 
ranges from 9.25% to 10.50% per annum (2012: 9.09% to 9.70%) with maturities from 3 to 12 
months.

9.2.3	 This represent investment in Sukuk Certificates of WAPDA maturing on October 14, 2021.	
The effective rate of profit is 6 month KIBOR plus 1.75% (2012: Nil) payable semi annually.

				2013			 2012		
Note	 Held by 	 Given as 	 Total	 Held by	 Given as	 Total				

Bank 	 collateral		 Bank	  collateral	
---------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------



	* Wherever rating of instrument is not available or in case the instrument is unrated, the same 
has been marked as 'N/A'.														

9.2.5	 Details of investments in Preference Shares - Listed

	Available for sale securities				

Summit Bank Limited	  A-/A-3 	 25,000,000 	  250,000 	    250,025 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   							

Held to maturity securities											

Summit Bank Limited	  A-/A-3 	  24,999,067 	  249,961 	  249,961 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

9.2.6	 Details of investments in Preference Shares - Unlisted	

Held to maturity securities																					

Silk Bank Limited	  A-/A-2 	  100,000,000 	  250,000 	     250,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	     -

 	 2013 	  2012		

Rating * 	 Number of 	  Market / 	  Cost	 Rating *  	 Number of	  Market / 	 Cost				
shares	 net			 shares	 net				

asset value				 asset value	
(Rupees in '000)	 (Rupees in '000)

 	 2013 	  2012	
Rating *	 Number of 	  Market 	  Cost 	 Rating *	 Number of 	  Market 	  Cost				

shares 	 value 			 shares	 value	
(Rupees in '000)	 (Rupees in '000)

Available-for-sale securities
Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each	

(unless stated otherwise)
Pakistan Petroleum Limited
Pakistan Refinery Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
International Steel Limited
Aisha Steel Mills Limited
Thatta Cement Company Limited
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited
Nishat Chunian Power Limited
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
Summit Bank Limited
Tracker Direct Insurance Limited
Total investment in shares of	

listed companies

 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 N/A	  125,000 	  22,099 	  22,384	
A-/A2	  104,158	  7,931 	  8,892 	 N/A	  104,158 	  7,218 	  8,892	
A/A1	  500,000	  79,190 	  80,502 	 -	  -   	  -   	  -   	
A/A1	  1,650,000	  184,734 	  192,695 	 N/A	  700,000 	  81,998 	  83,485	
N/A	  2,550,000	  43,911 	  44,718 	 N/A	  2,550,000 	  30,855 	  35,879	
N/A	  5,000,000	  46,950 	  50,000 	 A-/A-2	  5,000,000 	  53,250 	  50,000	
N/A	  3,375,000	  84,341 	  95,808 	 N/A	  3,375,000 	  84,375 	  84,501	
N/A	  450,000	  12,798 	  12,396 	 -	  -   	  -   	  -   	

A+/A-2	  3,500,000	  121,730 	  124,021 	 -	  -   	  -   	  -   	
AA- / A1+	  20,000,000	  481,200 	  548,951 	 AA- / A1+	  4,989,660 	 102,338 	  106,763	
AA  / A1+	  7,726,500	  164,574 	  165,984 	 AA  / A1+	 14,140,272 	 328,761 	  340,113	

A-/A-3	  11,872,585	  25,526 	  41,522 	 A-/A-2	  11,872,585 	  35,262 	  41,521	
N/A	  1,000,000	  9,950 	  10,000 	 N/A	  1,000,000 	  9,980 	  10,000													

 	 1,262,835	 1,375,489 			 756,136	 783,538

9.2.4	 Details of investment in shares of listed companies 9.2.7	 Details of investment in Term Finance Certificates	
- Listed

 	 Rating *	Number of 	Paid-up 	 Market	  Cost	 Rating *	 Number of	 Paid-up	 Market	 Cost		
certificates	 value per 	 value 			 certificates	  value per	 value	 			

certificate					 certificate
	(Rupees in '000)		 (Rupees in '000)

 	 2013 	  2012

	Available-for-sale securities																					

NIB Bank Limited **		  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 A+	  10,000 	  5,000 	  50,035 	  48,857 													

Held-to-maturity securities															

ORIX Leasing Pakistan	
Limited - 3rd issue	 AA+	  1,000 	  100,000	  20,000	  20,000	 AA+	  1,000 	 100,000 	  60,000 	  60,000	

Summit Bank Limited **	 A-(SO)	  44,982 	  5,000	  224,702	  224,702	 A-(SO)	  44,982 	  5,000 	  224,807 	 224,807				
 	  244,702	  244,702				  284,807 	 284,807				
 	  244,702	 244,702				  334,842 	 333,664

*	 Represents instrument rating in case of investment in term finance certificates.

**	 Secured and have face value of Rs. 5,000/- each, unless specified otherwise.

**	 These term finance certificates are sub-ordinated. In case of occurrence of default, the payment 	
in respect of principal and profit will rank subordinated to all the depositors and other creditors 	
of the issuing banks.

9.2.7.1	 Other particulars of listed term finance certificates are as follows:									

Particulars	 Rate	 Profit payment	  Redemption terms 	  									

ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited - 3rd issue (secured)	 2.15% above 3 months 	 Quarterly	 Three years from June 30,		
KIBOR		 2011 (date of issue).							

Summit Bank Limited (unsecured)	 3.25% above 6 months	 Semi-annually	 Seven years from October 27,		
 KIBOR		 2011 (date of issue).

	Bank Al-Habib Limited	
 - 4th issue **	 AA	  10,000 	  5,000 	  51,436 	  51,436 	 AA	  10,000 	  5,000 	  51,472 	 51,462 	
Faysal Bank Limited													
- 2nd issue **	 AA-	  5,000 	  5,000 	  25,352 	  25,352 	 AA-	  5,000 	  5,000 	  25,449 	 25,449 					

76,788 	  76,788 				 76,921 	  76,911

	*	 Represents instrument rating in case of investment in term finance certificates.	

**	 Secured and have face value of Rs. 5,000/- each, unless specified otherwise.	

**	 These term finance certificates are sub-ordinated. In case of occurrence of default, the payment 		
in respect of principal and profit will rank subordinated to all the depositors and other creditors 		
of the issuing banks.

9.2.8	 Details of investment in Term Finance Certificates - Unlisted

 			 2013 	  2012 		
Rating *	 Number of 	 Paid-up	  Market	 Cost	 Rating *	 Number of 	 Paid-up	  Market	 Cost		

certificates	 value per	 value 			 certificates	  value per	 value			
certificate		  		  	 certificate

	(Rupees in '000)	 (Rupees in '000)



9.2.9 	 Details of investment in Mutual Funds		
available for sale securities

					2013	 2012	
Other	 Rating	 Market	 Cost	 Other	 Rating	 Market	 Cost	

Information		 value		 Information		 value	

Pak Brunei Investment		
Company Limitex	 -	 -	 -	 -	 Chief	 AA/A1+	 500,00	 500,00						

Executive						
Officer:						
Ms,Ayesha Aziz

This represented COI carrying profit at the rate of 11.50% per annum. This COI matured on March 20, 2013.

9.2.10	 Certificates of investment

	Particulars	 Other information	 Rate	 Profit payment	 Redemption terms			

Bank Al-Habib Limited - 4th issue (unsecured)	 Chief Executive Officer:	 15% per anum from year 1 	 Semi- annually	 Ten years from  June 30,		
Mr. Abbas D. Habib	  to 5 and 15.5% per		 2011 (date of issue).				

annum from year 6 to 10 	

Faysal Bank Limited - 2nd issue (unsecured)	 Chief Executive Officer: 	 2.25% above 6 months	 Semi- annually	 Seven years from			
Mr. Naveed A. Khan	 KIBOR		   December 27, 					

2011 (date of issue).

	2013	 2012	
 Rating * 	 Number of 	 Market / net	  Cost 	  Rating *	 Number of	 Market / net	 Cost 		

units*	  asset value 			  units*	 asset value 	
(Rupees in '000)	 (Rupees in '000)

	Open end									
National Investment Unit Trust	  AM2- 	  5,498,131 	  273,477 	    250,000 	  AM2- 	  22,368,029 	  742,395 	    750,000 	

Close end											
PICIC Growth Fund	  AM2- 	  1,530,000 	  38,372 	  41,152 	 -   	 -   	  -   	  -   	
PICIC Investment Fund	  AM2- 	  6,142,000 	  69,835 	  76,604 	 -   	 -   	  -   	  -   				

 108,207 	  117,756 			  -   	  -   					

Total Investments in Mutual Funds	  		 381,684 	  367,756 			  742,395 	  750,000	

*	 Represents instrument rating in case of investment in mutual funds. 

9.3	 Particulars of provision for diminution in the value of investments						
2013	 2012		

Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Opening balance		  1,673 	  31,382 			

Charge for the period		 17,292 	  1,069 	
Reversal made during the year		  (1,425)	 (1,235)			

 15,867 	  (166)	
Reversal on disposal of shares		 (584)	 (29,543)		

9.3.1	  16,956 	  1,673 

9.3.1	 Particulars of provision in respect of Type and Segment		

Available-for-sale securities	
Listed shares		 16,956 	  1,673 			

 16,956 	  1,673 
10	 ADVANCES	

Loans, cash credits, agriculture, running finances etc.				
- 	 In Pakistan		 21,419,180 	 13,560,657		

Commodity Finance	
-	 In Pakistan	 10.2	 4,999,168 	 5,185,552	

Bills discounted and purchased (excluding market treasury bills)	
-	 Payable in Pakistan		  115,269 	  525,393	
-	 Payable outside Pakistan		  31,225 	  10,286

9.2.8.1	 Other particulars of un-listed term finance certificates are as follows:

Advances -  gross	 10.1	  26,564,842 	 19,281,888 

Provision for non-performing advances - specific	 10.3	  -   	  -   

Advances -  net		 26,564,842 	 19,281,888 

10.1	 Particulars of advances (Gross)

10.1.1	 In local currency		  26,564,842 	 19,281,888 	
In foreign currency		  -   	  -   			

 26,564,842 	 19,281,888 

10.1.2	Short term (for upto one year)		 19,692,420 	 15,940,209 	
Long term (for over one year)		  6,872,422 	  3,341,679 			

 26,564,842 	 19,281,888

10.3.2	 The SBP vide circular No. 1 of 2011 dated October 21, 2011 has revised Forced Sale Value 
(FSV) benefit of eligible collaterals held against non-performing loans for calculating provisioning 
requirement. Accordingly the Bank has availed the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) on 
mortgaged residential and commercial property (land and building only) held as collateral against 
non-performing advances on the basis of revised instructions. Had the benefit under the said 
circular not taken by the Bank, the specific provision against non-performing advances would 
have been higher by PKR 15.061 million (December 31, 2012 : Nil). The FSV benefit recognized	
will not be available for the distribution as cash and stock dividend to shareholders.

10.2	 This represents commodity financing provided to Food Department, Government of Sindh, in 	
syndication with other Commercial Banks.												

10.3	 Advances include Rs. 42.587 million (December 31, 2012: Nil) which have been placed under 	
non-performing status as detailed below:

	2013	 2012
Category of classification	  	 Classified  Advances	 Provision	 Provision	 Classified Advances		 Provision	 Provision 	

Domestic	 Overseas	 Total	 Required	 Held	 Domestic	 Overseas	 Total	  Required	 Held		

--------------------------- (Rupees '000) -------------------------	 --------------------------- (Rupees '000) -------------------------

Other Assets Especially												
Mentioned (OAEM)	  12,466 	  -   	  12,466 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	   -   	 -

Substandard	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 -
Doubtful	  30,121 	  -   	  30,121 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 -
Loss	   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -			

 42,587 	  -   	  42,587 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			2013	 2012
10.4	 Particulars of loans and advances to directors,	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

associated companies, subsidiaries etc.	
Debts due by directors, executives or officers of the Bank or any		

of them either severally or jointly with any other persons:	
Balance at beginning of year		  86,131 	  68,154 	
Loans granted during the year		  68,561 	  46,731 	
Repayments		  (24,652)	  (17,130)	
Outgoing employees		  (1,847)	  (11,624)									

Balance at end of year	  10.4.1 	  128,193 	  86,131 	
Debts due by companies or firms in which the directors of the Bank are		

interested as directors, partners or in the case of private companies		
as members:	

Balance at beginning of year	 10.4.2	  468,750 	  342,445 	
Loans granted during the year		  -   	  3,382,793 	
Repayments		  (62,500)	  (2,838,471)	
Termination of related party relationship		  -   	  (418,017)	
Balance at end of year		  406,250 	  468,750 				

 	 534,443 	  554,881

			2013	 2012			
Note	  (Rupees in '000)



		2013	 2012
11	 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Capital work-in-progress	 11.1	  65,118 	  137,367 	
Property and equipment	 11.2	  1,618,408 	  1,352,728 	
Intangible assets	 11.3	  82,777 	  66,709 			

 1,766,303 	  1,556,804 

11.1	 This represents advance payment for purchase of furniture and fixture, office equipment and 			
vehicles.

11.2	 Property and equipment - own use

10.4.1	This represents staff loans given by the Bank to its executives / officers as per their terms of 
employment.													

10.4.2	This includes loan balance of an entity where more than 20% equity has been acquired by 
Government of Sindh during the year ended December 31, 2012.

As at 
January 
01, 2013

Additions / 
(deletion) / 
adjustment

As at 
December 
31, 2013

As at 
January 
01, 2013

Charge for 
the year / 

(disposal) / 
adjustment

As at 
December 
31, 2013

Net book 
value as at 
December 
31, 2013

Rate of 
depreciation

%

	2013		
Cost	 Accumulated Depreciation

 --------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)--- ----------------------------------------------------------------

 	 692,318	  191,483 	  839,665 	  20,511 	  33,678 	  53,850	  785,815	 5 		
 (2,734)			  (339)	 		

(41,402)			  -   		
281,306	  80,654 	  364,384 	  19,438 	  34,430 	 53,861	 310,523	   10 	

 		 (27)			  (7)	 		
2,451 			 -   		

393,694	  239,177 	  629,251	 75,904 	  131,367 	  204,119	  425,132	 33.33 & 20	
 		 (3,307)	  		 (3,152)		

(313)			 -   			
 	 139,567	  37,288 	  156,912 	  38,304 	  33,068 	  59,974	  96,938	 20  		

(19,943)			  (11,398)

 1,506,885 	  548,602 	  1,990,212 	  154,157 	  232,543 	 371,804	 1,618,408		
 (26,011)			  (14,896)				

 		 (39,264)			 -   	    

Leasehold improvements		

Furniture and fixtures		

Computer equipment		

Vehicles

 	 224,123	  472,210 	  692,318 	  3,563 	  16,962	  20,511 	  671,807 	 5 		
 (2,497)			  (9)				

 		 (1,518)			  (5)				
87,209	  194,045 	  281,306 	  3,469 	  15,989 	  19,438 	  261,868 	 10 		

 (825)			  (21)					
 877 			  1 				

 162,138	  240,894 	  393,694 	  18,841 	  58,971 	  75,904 	  317,790 	 33.33 & 20	
 	 (9,091)			  (1,908)						

 (247)				    			
 99,631	  41,288 	  139,567 	  13,763 	  24,789 	  38,304 	  101,263 	 20 		

 (1,352)			  (248)						

573,101	  948,437 	  1,506,885 	  39,636 	  116,711 	  154,157 	  1,352,728 				
 (13,765)			  (2,186)					

 	 (888)			 (4)

As at 
January 01, 

2012

Additions /
 (deletion) / 
adjustment

As at 
December 
31, 2012

As at 
January 01,

 2012

Charge for 
the year / 

(disposal) / 
adjustment

As at 
December 31,

 2012

Net book 
value as at 
December 
31, 2012

Rate of 
depreciation

%

	Cost	 Accumulated Depreciation
2012

Leasehold improvements				

Furniture and fixtures				

Computer equipment				

Vehicles

11.2.1	The cost of fully depreciated furniture and fixture, office and computer equipment still in use	
amounted to Rs. 9.9 million  (2012: Rs. 4.96 million).

 --------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)--- ----------------------------------------------------------------

11.4	 Disposal																				

Details of disposal of fixed assets having cost of more than Rs.1,000,000 or net book 			
value of Rs.250,000 or above are given below:											

Cost 	  Accumulated	 Book	 Sale	 Mode of	 Particulars			
depreciation 	 value	 proceeds 	 disposal	 of buyers /							

insurance claim  	
 --------------------  Rupees in '000  ---------------------

  	 Leasehold Improvements	
Renovation work	  2,666 	  333 	  2,333 	  -   	  Write off			

Renovation work	  69 	  6 	  63 	  60 	  Insurance 	  National 								
Claim 	 Insurance							

Company limited 		
 2,735 	  339 	  2,396 	  60 				

Furniture & Fixture	
Miscellaneous	  27 	  7 	  20 	  31 	  Various 	  Various 											

Machine Equipments	
110 KVA Generator	 1,003 	  889 	  114 	  671 	  Negotiation 	 Trolly Corporation 											

100 KVA Generator	  1,090 	  1,090 	  -   	  565 	  Negotiation 	 Trolly Corporation 											

60 KVA Generator	  987 	  987 	  -   	  594 	  Negotiation 	 Trolly Corporation 											

Split A.C and Fire Alarm system	  227 	  187 	  40 	  75 	  Various 	  Various 		

 3,307 	  3,153 	  154 	  1,905 	
Motor Vehicle										

Toyota Land Cruiser	  19,200 	  11,200 	  8,000 	  8,000 	  As per 	  Muhammad						
Bank Policy 	  Bilal Sheikh-							

President							
and CEO						

Insurance 	 National Insurance	
 	 Suzuki Alto VXR	  742 	  198 	  544 	  544 	 Claim	  Company limited											

 19,942 	  11,398 	  8,544 	  8,544 			

December 31, 2013	  26,011 	  14,897 	  11,114 	  10,540 												

December 31, 2012	  13,851 	  2,189 	  11,661 	  10,554 

	Cost	 Accumulated Depreciation
As at 

January 01, 
2012

Additions / 
(deletions)

As at 
December
31, 2012

As at 
January 01

, 2012

Amortization 
for the  year / 
adjustment

As at 
December 31, 

2012

Net book 
value as at
 December 
31, 2012

Rate of 
amortization

%

 	 48,856	  35,194	  83,964	  5,143	  12,115	  17,255	  66,709	 20 	
 	 (86)			  (3)					

 	 48,856	  35,194	  83,964	  5,143	  12,115	  17,255	  66,709		
 (86)			  (3)

Software
 --------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------

2013

As at 
January 01, 

2013

Additions / 
(deletion)

As at 
December
31, 2013

As at 
January 01, 

2013

Amortization 
 for the  year / 

adjustment

As at 
December 
31, 2013

Net book value 
as at December

 31, 2013

Rate of 
amortization

%

 	83,964	 34,117 	  118,081 	  17,255 	  18,049 	  35,304 	  82,777 	 20 	

83,964	  34,117 	  118,081 	  17,255 	  18,049 	  35,304 	  82,777 	
 		 -    			 -

 --------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------

Software

	Cost	 Accumulated Depreciation

11.3	 Intangible assets

2012





20	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	

20.1	 Direct credit substitutes		

Includes general guarantees of indebtness in favour of :	

i)    Government	  869,454 	  255,384 	
ii)   Banking companies and other financial institutions 	  12,565 	  32,424 	
iii)  Others	  895,403 	  18,551 		

 1,777,422 	  306,359 
20.2	 Trade related contingent liabilities	

-    Others	  2,873,074 	 1,064,792

20.3	 Commitments to extend credit	

-    Commitment to extend credit	  23,219,213 	 11,009,823

20.4	 Transaction related contigent liabilities

20.5	 Contigent liabilities in respect of guarantee given, favoring	

-    Others	  6,700 	 500,000
20.6	 Commitment in respect of forward rate agreements - currency	

-    Purchase	  3,031,487 	 2,765,611	
-    Sale	  2,187,406 	 2,011,073

20.7	 Commitment in respect of forward rate agreements - shares	

-    Sale	  258,000 	  -   

20.8	 Commitment in respect of repo transactions	

-    Sale and repurchase agreement	  15,087,966 	 47,674,384 	
-    Purchase and resale agreement	  537,667 	  523,367 

21	 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED	

On loans and advances to:		
Customers	  2,793,619 	  1,921,106 	

On investments in:		
Available-for-sale securities	  3,059,079 	  3,287,582 		
Held-to-maturity securities	  102,654 	  110,268 	

On deposits with financial institutions	  129,429 	  617,939 	
On securities purchased under resale agreements	  158,477 	  108,844 	
On call / clean lendings	  86,123 	  95,459 		

 6,329,381 	  6,141,198

				2013	 2012
19	 (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 	  (Rupees in '000)		

INVESTMENTS- net of deferred tax	

Available-for-sale securities	
Government securities	  (498,111)	  109,160 	
Listed companies (ordinary shares)	  (105,245)	  (25,729)	
Mutual funds (units / certificates)	  23,477 	  (7,605)	
Term finance certificates	  -   	  1,178 		

 (579,879)	  77,004 	
Reversal of impairment on shares	  2,659 	  1,235 		

 (577,220)	  78,239 	
Related deferred taxation	  202,027 	  (27,384)		

 (375,193)	  50,855

	---------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------	 ---------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------------	

Deferred tax credits arising in respect of:	
- Operating fixed assets - Tangible	  172,909 	  28,423 	  -   	  201,332 	  69,976 	  102,933 	  -   	  172,909 	
- Operating fixed assets - Intangible	  7,548 	  9,366 	  -   	  16,914 	  3,900 	  3,648 	  -   	  7,548 	
- Surplus on revaluation of investments	  27,385 	  -   	  (27,385)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  27,385 	  27,385 		

 207,842 	  37,789 	  (27,385)	  218,246 	  73,876 	  106,581 	  27,385 	  207,842 	
Deferred tax debits arising due to:	
- Deficit on revaluation of investments	 -   	  -   	  202,027 	  202,027 	  46,603 	  -   	  (46,603)	  -   	
- Provision for compensated absences	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  4,033 	  (4,033)	  -   	  -   	
- Provision fordiminution in the			

value of investments	  586 	  5,349 	  -   	  5,935 	  10,984 	  (10,398)	  -   	  586 	
- Provision for gratuity	 -   	  773 	  -   	  773 	  1,934 	  (1,934)	  -   	  -   		

 586 	  6,122 	  202,027 	  208,735 	  63,554 	  (16,365)	  (46,603)	  586

	2013	 2012
16	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - net	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Deferred tax credits arising in respect of:	
-   Operating fixed assets - Tangible		 201,332 	 172,909 	
-   Operating fixed assets - Intangible		  16,914 	  7,548 	
-   Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investments - net		  -   	  27,385 			

218,246 	  207,842 	
Deferred tax debits arising due to:	
-   Deficit on revaluation of investments	 19	  (202,027)	  -   	
-   Provision for diminution in the value of investments		 (5,935)	  (586)	
-   Provision for gratuity		 (773)	  -   			

 (208,735)	  (586)			
9,511 	  207,256

16.1	 Reconciliation of deferred tax	 2013	 2012
Balance as at 
January 01, 

2013

Recognised in
profit and loss

account

Recognised in 
deficit on

revaluation of
investments

Balance as at
December 31,

2013

Balance as at 
January 01,

2012

Recognised in 
profit and loss 

account

Recognised in 
deficit on

revaluation of
investments

Balance as at
December 31,

2012

			2013	 2012
17	 OTHER LIABILITIES	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Mark-up / Return/ Interest payable in local currency		  447,236 	  344,431 	
Mark-up / Return/ Interest payable in foreign currency		  3,689 	  6,230 	
Payable to Employees' Gratuity Fund		  24,179 	  18,547 	
Provision for compensated absences		  44,579 	  26,381 	
Payable against forward forex revaluation - net	 12.1	  20,328 	  -   	
Accrued expenses		  58,579 	  62,486 	
Payable against purchase of shares		  1,836 	  -   	
Payable against purchase of assets		  119,086 	  201,679 	
Retention money - suppliers / contractors		  73,242 	  68,556 	
Federal Excise Duty / sales tax on services payable		  2,201 	  1,253 	
Withholding tax payable		  1,638 	  802 	
Others		  22,353 	  17,110 			

 818,946 	  747,475

18	 SHARE CAPITAL																							

18.1	 Authorised Capital													

2013	 2012	 2013	 2012		
Number of shares	  (Rupees in '000) 			

 1,000,000,000 	  1,000,000,000 	  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each	  10,000,000 	  10,000,000 

18.2		 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital	

 1,000,000,000 	  1,000,000,000 	  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash	  10,000,000 	  10,000,000 

18.3	 The Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department, owns 100% ordinary shares 			
of the Bank.



			2013	  2012 
22	 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED	 (Rupees in '000)		

Deposits		  2,075,156 	  1,868,520 	
Securities sold under repurchase agreements	 1,788,709 	  2,112,546 	
Other short term borrowings	 207,778 	  121,717 			

4,071,643 	  4,102,783

23	 GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - net		
Federal Govt. Securities			
-    Market Treasury Bills		  	 2,318 	  50,720 	
-    Pakistan Investment Bonds	  	 80,774 	  3,241 	
Mutual Funds		  	 153,867 	  29,106 	
Shares - Listed		  	 233,914 	  174,433 			

 	 470,873 	  257,500 
24	 OTHER INCOME					

Prequalification application fee	  	 325 	  533 	
Gain / (Loss) on sale of fixed assets		  1,759 	  (1,108)	
Rebate income on mutual funds		 -   	  1,560 	
Others		  	 700 	  392 			

 	 2,784 	  1,377 									

2013	  2012 					
Restated

25	 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 	 Note	 (Rupees in '000)			

Salaries, allowances and benefits		  1,011,875 	  589,394 	
Contribution to defined contribution plan	 31.2	  27,312 	  14,217 	
Contribution to defined benefit plan	 31.1	  23,022 	  13,817 	
Non-Executive Director's Fee		  5,575 	  4,000 	
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.		  439,749 	  252,528 	
Legal and professional charges		  3,994 	  2,440 	
Communications			 55,787 	  31,898 	
Repairs and maintenance			  57,205 	  28,672 	
Stationery and printing			  42,170 	  29,241 	
Security service charges			  104,966 	  45,337 	
Advertisement and publicity		  44,304 	  79,148 	
Amortization of intangible assets	 11.3	  18,049 	  12,115 	
Depreciation on operating fixed assets	 11.2	  232,544 	  116,707 	
Auditor's remuneration		 25.1	  3,262 	  2,728 	
Travelling and conveyance			  13,167 	  12,348 	
Brokerage and commission			 5,741 	  3,824 	
Fees and subscription			  24,244 	  21,017 	
Entertainment			  16,552 	  9,518 	
Miscellaneous expense			  12,194 	  9,454 				

 2,141,712 	  1,278,403 
25.1	 Auditors’ remuneration	

Audit fee			  1,440 	  1,200 	
Review of half yearly financial statements		  780 	  650 	
Certifications and other advisory services		  480 	  420 	
Tax services			  300 	  300 	
Out-of-pocket expenses			  262 	  158 				

 3,262 	  2,728

30.1	 Outsourced represents employees hired by an outside contractor / agency and posted in the 
Bank to perform various tasks / activities of the Bank.

31	 DEFINED BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION PLANS

31.1	 Defined benefit plan											

The Bank operates a recognised gratuity scheme for all its permanent and full time employees 
in the management cadre who have completed the minimum qualifying period of three years. 
Contributions are made to the fund in accordance with the recommendations of the actuary. 
Employees are entitled to the benefits under the scheme which comprise of one month last	
drawn basic salary for each completed year of service, subject to completion of minimum	
three years services with the Bank.

				2013	 2012
26	 OTHER  CHARGES		 (Rupees in '000) 			

Penalty imposed by the SBP		  443 	  29 

27	 TAXATION	

Current 			  255,830 	  275,709 	
Deferred			  31,666 	  122,946 				

 287,496 	  398,655 
27.1	 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit								

Profit before tax			  953,400 	  1,286,427 		

Tax on income @ 35%			  333,690 	  450,249 	
Tax at reduce rate			  (47,042)	  (52,056)	
Effect of permanent differences		  349 	  -   	
Reversal of impairment			  499 	  462 				

 287,496 	  398,655

28	 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE		  						

Profit after tax for the year			  665,904 	  886,976 					

 (Number of Shares) 			

Weighted average number of ordinary shares		 1,000,000,000 	1,000,000,000 							

 Rupees 			

Basic and diluted earning per share (Restated)		  0.67 	  0.89 										

2013	 2012
29	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		  (Rupees in '000) 			

Cash and balances with treasury banks		  3,518,863 	  2,430,525 	
Balances with other banks			  190,823 	  424,573 				

 3,709,686 	  2,855,098

30	 STAFF STRENGTH 	 2013	 2012	
Note	 Number of staff			

Permanent		  1,167 	  924 	
Temporary / on contractual basis		  146 	  114 	
Bank's own staff at the end of the period		  1,313 	  1,038 	
Outsourced	 30.1	  275 	  203 	
Total staff strength		  1,588 	  1,241



				2013	 2012	
- Discount rate - percent (per annum)		 13.00 	 11.50	
- Expected rate of increase in salaries - percent (per annum)		 12.00 	 11.50	
- Withdrawal rate before normal retirement age		 "moderate"	"moderate"									

2013	 2012
31.1.2	 Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan	 Note	  (Rupees in '000)	

Present value of defined benefit obligations	 31.1.5	  39,179 	  18,547 	
Fair value of plan assets		 31.1.6	  (15,000)	  -   	
Payable to defined benefit plan	 31.1.3	  24,179 	  18,547 									

2013	 2012
31.1.3	 Movement in payable to defined benefit plan			 Restated			

Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Opening balance			  18,547 	  5,526 	
Charge for the period		

- in profit and loss		 31.1.4	  23,022 	  13,817 		
- in other comprehensive income	 31.1.4	  1,157 	  (796)	

Bank contribution made during the year		  (18,547)	  -   	
Closing balance			 24,179 	  18,547 

31.1.4	 Charge for defined benefit plan	

In profit and loss	
Current service cost			  23,039 	  13,126 	
Interest (income) / (cost) - net		  (17)	  691 	
Charge for the period			  23,022 	  13,817 	

In other comprehensive income	
Acturial (loss) / gain on obligation		  (843)	  796 	
Acturial loss on plan assets			  (314)	  -   				

 (1,157)	  796	 				

2013	 2012					
Restated

31.1.5	 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation 	 (Rupees in '000) 			

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year		  18,547 	  5,526 	
Current Service cost 			  23,039 	  13,126 	
Interest cost			  1,840 	  691 	
Benefits paid			  (5,090)	  -   	
Acturial (loss) / gain on obligation	
-    Demographic assumptions		 60 	 -   	
-    Financial assumptions			  (6,043)	  -   	
-    Experience assumptions		  6,826 	  (796)				

 843 	  (796)	
Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year		  39,179 	  18,547

31.1.1	 Principal actuarial assumptions											

The latest actuarial valuation is carried out as at 31 December 2013 using the " Projected	
Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method". Following are the significant assumptions used in the actuarial	
valuation:

				2013	 2012
31.1.6	 Changes in fair value of plan assets	 Note	  (Rupees in '000) 			

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year		 -    	 -    	
Expected return on plan assets		  1,858 	  -    	
Contributions			  18,547 	  -    	
Benefits paid			  (5,091)	  -    	
Acturial gain / (loss) on asset	
-    Experience assumptions		  (314)	  -    	
Defined benefit obligation as at end of the year	 31.1.7	  15,000 	  -    

31.1.7	 Plan assets comprise:	

Balance held in bank accounts		  15,000 	  -    

31.1.8	 Sensitivity analysis	

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acturial assumptions, 
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the 
amounts shown below:				

2013	 2012				
(Rupees in '000) 		

Discount rate (1% variation)		  34,248 	  45,221 	
Future salary growth (1% variation)		  45,221 	  34,167 	
Future mortality (1 year variation)		  39,153 	  39,205 	

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under 
the plan, it does provide an approximation of sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

31.1.9	 The expected gratuity expense for the year commencing 01 January 2014 works out to	
Rs. 25.395 million (2012: Rs. 22.04 million).

31.1.10	Maturity analysis:	

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation works out to be 25.33 years. 
Expected benefit payments for the next five year are:

	2014	 2015	 2016	 2017	 2018	
---------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------------			

Expected benefit payments	  3,778 	  2,136 	  6,618 	  6,897 	  12,854

31.2	 Defined contribution plan	

The Bank operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal 
monthly contributions are made, both by the Bank and its employees, to the fund at the rate 
of 10 percent (2012: 8.33 percent) of basic salaries of the employees. The minimum qualifying 
period of service for the purpose of the Bank's contribution is one year. The contribution made 
by the Bank and its employees during the year amounted to Rs. 54.544 million. The number 
of employees as at December 31, 2013 eligible under the scheme were 914.

32	 COMPENSATED ABSENCES	

The Bank grants compensated absences to all its regular employees as per service rules. 
Regular employees are entitled to 30 days privilege leave for each completed year of service. 
Unutilized privilege leaves are accumulated upto maximum of 60 days which would be encashed 
at the time of retirement from the regular service of the Bank or severance of service except 
dismissal. These are encashable on the basis of last drawn gross salary.	

An actuarial valuation was carried out using the "Project Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method" to 
determine the liability of the Bank as at 31 December 2013. Following are the significant 
assumptions used in the actuarial valuation :



34	 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS			

December 31, 2013			
Book Value	 Fair Value

34.1	 On-balance sheet financial instruments	 (Rupees in '000)		
Assets	
Cash and balances with treasury banks		  3,518,863 	  3,518,863 	
Balances with other banks		  190,823 	  190,823 	
Lendings to financial institutions		  4,036,358 	  4,036,358 	
Investments - net 			  37,365,723 	  36,785,844 	
Advances			  26,564,842 	  26,564,842 	
Other assets			  1,669,787 	  1,669,787 				

 73,346,396 	  72,766,517 	
Liabilities	
Bills payable			  362,522 	  362,522 	
Borrowings from financial institutions		  16,758,368 	  16,758,368 	
Deposits and other accounts		  45,756,220 	  45,756,220 	
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		  -   	  -   	
Other liabilities			  450,925 	  450,925 				

 63,328,035 	  63,328,035 						

December 31, 2012			
Book Value	 Fair Value	

On-balance sheet financial instruments	 (Rupees in '000)			

Assets	
Cash and balances with treasury banks		  2,430,525 	  2,430,525 	
Balances with other banks		  424,573 	  424,573 	
Lendings to financial institutions		  4,619,591 	  4,619,591 	
Investments			  62,554,020 	  62,631,024 	
Advances			  19,281,888 	  19,281,888 	
Other assets			  798,636 	  798,636 				

 90,109,233 	  90,186,237 	
Liabilities	
Bills payable			  176,125 	  176,125 	
Borrowings from financial institutions		 48,602,402 	  48,602,402 	
Deposits and other accounts		 31,469,652 	  31,469,652 	
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		  -        	  -       	
Other liabilities			  350,661 	  350,661 				

 80,598,840 	  80,598,840

	The fair value of quoted securities is based on the quoted market price. Fair value of unquoted 
investments is based on cost less any impairment as per the policy of the Bank. Fair value of 
Government securities is determined using PKRV rates.	

Fair value of other fixed term investments, lendings and deposits can not be calculated with 
sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities 
and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.	

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and financial 
liabilities are not  significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are 
either short term in nature or in the case of customer financing and deposits are frequently 
repriced.

				2013	 2012	
- Discount rate - percent (per annum)		 13.00	 11.50	
- Expected rate of increase in salaries - percent (per annum)		 12.00	 11.50	
- Leave Accumulation Factor		 12 leaves	 12 leaves				

per annum 	 per annum

33	 COMPENSATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,	
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES							

December 31, 2013		
Chief	 Non- 	 Executive	Executives		

Executive 	 Executive	 Directors		
Officer	 Directors		

------------------ (Rupees in '000) ---------------------

	Fees	  -   	  5,575 	  -   	  -   	
Managerial remuneration	  21,382 	  -   	  496 	  170,613 	
Charge for defined benefit plan 	  4,056 	  -   	  42 	  9,207 	
Contribution for defined contribution plan 	  2,138 	  -   	  50 	  11,528 	
Rent and house maintenance	  9,622 	  -   	  223 	  76,776 	
Utilities	  2,138 	  -   	  50 	  17,061 	
Medical	  2,138 	  -   	  50 	  17,061 	
Conveyance	  884 	  -   	  68 	  59,638 	
Bonus  and others	  24,569 	  -   	  29 	  58,176 		

 66,927 	  5,575 	  1,008 	  420,060

		-------------------- (Number) --------------------		
1	 9	 1	 164				

December 31, 2012		
Chief	 Non- 	 Executive	 Executives		

Executive 	 Executive	 Directors		
Officer	 Directors		

-------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

Fees	  -   	  4,000	  -   	 -   
Managerial remuneration	  14,545	  -   	  -   	  101,658 
Charge for defined benefit plan 	  277	 -   	  -   	  6,186 
Contribution for defined contribution plan 	  1,212	 -   	  -   	  6,264 
Rent and house maintenance	  6,545	  -   	  -   	  45,746 
Utilities	  1,455	  -   	  -   	  10,166 
Medical	  1,455	  -   	  -   	  10,166 
Conveyance	  823	  -   	  -   	  32,216 
Bonus  and others	  18,175	  -   	  -   	  34,293 	

 44,487	  4,000	  -   	  246,695

		-------------------- (Number) --------------------
Number of persons	 1	 7	  -	 92

33.1	 The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives of the Bank are provided with free use of 
the Bank's maintained car.

33.2	 Executives mean employees, other than the Chief Executive Officer and directors, whose basic 
salary exceeds five hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.



		2013		
Trading and	 Retail 	 Corporate	 Commercial	 Total 		

sales	 banking	  finance	  banking and						
 	 others			

--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------	

Total income	  4,209,169 	  -   	  2,979,863	  -        	 7,189,032 		

Inter segment revenue - net	  (1,688,082)	 -   	 1,688,082	 -        	  -      		

Total income - net	  2,521,087	 -   	 4,667,945	 -        	 7,189,032 		

Total expenses	  (2,012,998)	 -   	 (4,222,634)	 -     	 (6,235,632)		

Net income / (loss)		
before tax	 508,089 	 -   	 445,311	 -        	  953,400 	

Segment assets	  44,050,963 	 -   	 30,981,491	 -      	 75,032,454 	

Segment liabilities	  15,986,134 	  -   	  47,719,433	 -      	 63,705,567 	

Segment return on assets		
(ROA) (%)*	 10.44% 	 -   	 10.06%	 -         	  -      		

Segment cost of funds (%)*	 9.23%	 -   	 5.90% 	  -        	 -      		

* Includes inter-segment revenue / cost.

		2012		
Trading and	 Retail 	 Corporate	 Commercial	 Total 		

sales	 banking	  finance	  banking and							
 others

Total income	 4,623,423	 -	 -      	 2,044,492	 6,667,915 

Inter segment revenue - net	 (1,898,983)	 -	 -      	 1,898,983	 -      

Total income - net	 2,724,440	  -	 -      	 3,943,475	 6,667,915 

Total expenses	 (2,254,438)	  -	 -      	(3,127,050)	 (5,381,488)

Net income / (loss)	  	
before tax	 470,002	 -	 -      	  816,425 	  1,286,427 

Segment assets	 69,455,671	 -	 -      	22,835,428 	 92,291,099 

Segment liabilities	  47,730,434 	  -	  -      	 33,472,477 	 81,202,911 

Segment return on assets	
(ROA) (%)*	 11.41%	  -	  -      	 11.74%	  -      

Segment cost of funds (%)*	 10.39%	  -	  -      	 7.56%	  -      

* Includes inter-segment revenue / cost.

		--------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------

34.2	 Off-balance sheet financial instruments						
Book Value	 Fair Value	 Book Value	 Fair Value		

(Rupees in '000)	 (Rupees in '000)		

Forward purchase of foreign currency	 3,031,487	 3,031,487	 2,765,611	 2,765,611 	

Forward sale of foreign currency	 2,187,406	 2,187,406	 2,011,073	 2,011,073 	

Forward sale of shares	 258,000	 258,000	 -	 -

35	 SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES	

The Bank is in the process of structuring its key business areas in various segments in a manner 
that each segment  becomes a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in 
providing products or services (business segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that 
are different from those of other segments. The business  segments within  the Bank have been 
broadly categorized into the following classifications of business segments in accordance with 
the requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan.	

(a)	 Business segments	

Corporate Finance												

It includes investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, 
privatization, securitization, Initial Public Offer (IPOs) and secondary private placements.	

Trading and sales	

It includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position 
securities, lendings and repos, brokerage debt and prime brokerage.	

Retail Banking	

Retail banking includes mortgage finance and personal loans to individual customers.	

Commercial Banking and others	

This includes loans, deposits and other transactions with corporate, small and medium sized 
customers including agriculture loans.	

(b)	 Geographical Segments	

The Bank operates only in Pakistan.	

Based on above structure, the segment information for the year ended December 31, 2013 is 
given below:

	2013	 2012



36	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS	

The related parties of the Bank comprise associated undertakings, directors, staff retirement funds 
and key management personnel (including their associates).	

Usual transactions with related parties includes deposits, advances and other banking services	
which are carried out in accordance with agreed terms. Transaction with executives are undertaken 
at terms in accordance with employment agreements and services rules.	

Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefits plan are made in accordance 
with the term of the benefit plan. Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and directors are 
determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.	

The details of balances and transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed under 
respective notes, during the year are as follows:

	2013		
Key 	 Directors	 Associates / 	Other related	

management		 subsidiaries	  parties	
personnel	

------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

Advances
Balance at the beginning of the year	  16,340 	  -     	  -   	  468,750 
Disbursed during the period	  22,847 	  -     	  -   	  -     
Adjustment for outgoing party **	  -   	  -     	  -   	  -     
Repaid during the period	  (9,664)	  -     	  -   	  (62,500)
At 31 December 2013	  29,523 	  -     	  -   	  406,250 

Deposits
Balance at the beginning of the year	  11,415 	  -   	  -   	  43,350 
Received during the period	  385,902 	  1,853 	  -   	  2,741,869 
Adjustment for outgoing party **	  (534)	  (1,325)	  -   	  -     
Withdrawals during the period	  (318,497)	  (528)	  -   	  (546,660)
At 31 December 2013	  78,286 	  -     	  -   	  2,238,559

Purchase of Government Securities	  -     	  -     	  -   	  5,195,316 
Sale of Government Securities	  -     	  -     	  -   	  973,170 
Purchase of shares under agency arrangement	  -     	  -     	  -   	  1,371,010 
Expenses recovered under agency arrangement	  -     	  -     	  -   	  40 
Mark-up receivable	  16 	  -     	  -   	  12,707 
Profit payable	  681 	  -     	  -   	  4,289 
Other Receivable	  -     	  -     	  -   	  8,887

	Year ended December 31, 2013
Mark-up / Interest / Return earned	  847	  -   	  -	  52,696
Mark-up / Interest / Return expensed	  3,519	  19	  -	  17,607
Gain on sale of Government Securities	  -   	  -   	  -	  4,237
Payment of branch rent	 -   	  -   	  -	  12,600
Remuneration paid	  130,965	  -   	  -	  -   
Contribution to provident fund	  5,142	  -   	  -	  -   
Provision for gratuity 	  6,466	  -   	  -	  -   
Gratuity paid	  5,091	  -   		  -   
Other staff benefits	  43,697	  -   	  -	  -   
Directors' meeting fee	  -   	  5,575	  -	  -

	Government of Sindh owns 100% shares of the Bank and transactions with the Government 
comprise of commodity financing amounting to Rs. 4,999 million (note 10.1) and receipt of deposits 
amounting to Rs. 7,891 million (note 15.2).

	2012		
Key 	 Directors	 Associates / 	Other related	

management		 subsidiaries	  parties	
personnel	

------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

Advances
Balance at the beginning of the year	  14,761 	  -   	  -   	 *  342,445 
Disbursed during the period	  5,650 	  -   	  -   	  3,382,793 
Adjustment for outgoing party **	 -   	  -   	  -   	  (418,017)
Repaid during the period	  (4,071)	  -   	  -   	  (2,838,471)
At 31 December 2012	  16,340 	  -   	  -   	  468,750 

Deposits
Balance at the beginning of the year	  9,321 	  -   	  -   	  260,008 
Received during the period	  169,886 	  -   	  -   	 907,410 
Adjustment for outgoing party **	  -   	 -   	  -   	  (216)
Withdrawals during the period	  (167,792)	  -   	  -   	  (1,123,852)
At 31 December 2012	  11,415 	  -   	  -   	  43,350 

Purchase of Government Securities	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,541,209 
Sale of Government Securities	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,010,215 
Mark-up receivable	  8 	  -   	  -   	  15,468 
Profit payable	  55 	  -   	 -   	  1,483 		

Year ended December 31, 2012

Mark-up / interest / return earned	  563 	  -   	  -   	  70,883 
Mark-up / interest / return expensed	  582 	  -   	  -   	  4,324 
Dividend received	 -   	  -   	  -   	  82,475 
Gain on sale of Government Securities	 -   	  -   	  -   	  637 
Guarantee commission	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,875 
Remuneration paid	  89,597 	  -   	  -   	  -   
Contribution to provident fund	  3,357 	  -   	  -   	  -   
Provision for gratuity 	  2,328 	  -   	  -   	  -   
Other staff benefits	  28,938 	  -   	  -   	  -   
Directors' meeting fee	 -   	  4,000 	  -   	  -   
Interim dividend paid to GoS	  -   	 -   	  -   	  600,000 
Other receipts	  -   	  -   	  -   	  980

*	 This includes loan balance of an entity where more than 20% equity has been acquired by 
Government of Sindh during the year ended December 31, 2012.

**	 Related Party relationship ended during the year due to resignation of common director from the 
Board of Sindh Bank.

37	 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

37.1	 Basel-III Framework is applicable to the Bank on standalone basis. The Bank in line with the SBP 
guidelines has adopted the standardized approach for credit, market risk and  basic indicator 
approach for operational risk.



37.2	 Capital Management	

Objectives and goals of managing capital	

The Bank manages its capital to attain following objectives and goals:

-	 an appropriately capitalized status, as defined by banking regulations;
-	 acquire strong credit ratings that enable an optimized funding mix and liquidity 	

sources at lesser costs;
-	 cover all risks underlying business activities;
-	 retain flexibility to harness future investment opportunities; build and expand 	even
-	 in stressed times.	

Statutory minimum capital requirement and Capital Adequacy Ratio	

The State Bank of Pakistan through its BSD Circular No.07 of 2009 dated April 15, 2009 
requires the minimum paid up capital (net of losses) for all locally incorporated banks 
to be raised to Rs. 10 billion by the year ended on December 31, 2013. The raise is to 
be achieved in a phased manner requiring Rs.10 billion paid up capital (net of losses) 
by the end of the financial year 2013. The paid up capital of the Bank for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 stands at Rs. 10 billion and is in compliance with the SBP requirement 
for the said year.	

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank was subject to the Basel-III capital adequacy 
guidelines stipulated by the State Bank of Pakistan through its circular BPRD Circular 
No. 06 of 2013 dated August 15, 2013. These instructions are effective from December 
31, 2013 in a phased manner with full implementation intended by December 31, 2019. 
Under Basel-III guidelines banks are required to maintain the following ratios on an 
ongoing basis:	

Phase-in arrangement and full implimentation of the minimum capital requirements

					Year ended				 As of 									
December 31,	

S No.	 Ratio	 2013	 2014	 2015	 2016	 2017	 2018	 2019	

1	 CET1	 5.000%	 5.500%	 6.000%	 6.000%	 6.000%	 6.000%	 6.000%	
2	 ADT-1	 1.500%	 1.500%	 1.500%	 1.500%	 1.500%	 1.500%	 1.500%	
3	 Tier-1	 6.500%	 7.000%	 7.500%	 7.500%	 7.500%	 7.500%	 7.500%	
4	 Total Capital	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.000%	
5	 * CCB	  -   	  -   	 0.250%	 0.650%	 1.275%	 1.900%	 2.500%	
6	 Total Capital plus CCB	 10.000%	 10.000%	 10.250%	 10.650%	 11.275%	 11.900%	 12.500%

*(Consisting of CET1 only)

Bank's regulatory capital is analysed into three tiers:

-	 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1), which includes fully paid up capital (including the 
bonus shares), balance in share premium account, general reserves, statutory reserves 
as per the financial statements and net unappropriated profits after all regulatory 
adjustments applicable on CET1 (refer to note 37.3)	

-	 Additional Tier 1 Capital (AT1), which includes perpetual non-cumulative preference 
shares and Share premium resulting from the issuance of preference shares balance 
in share premium account after all regulatory adjustments applicable on AT1 (refer to 
note 37.3)

37.3	 Capital structure		 2013	 2012		
Amount	 Amount subject	 Amount 			

to Pre Basel-III 			
treatment			

Rupees in '000

	Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
1	 Fully paid-up capital / Capital deposited with SBP		 10,000,000 	  -   	  10,000,000 
2	 Balance in share premium account		  -   	  -   	  -   
3	 Reserve for issue of bonus shares		  -   	 -   	 -   
4	 General / Statutory reserve		  460,647 	  -   	  327,467 
5	 Gain / (Losses) on derivatives held as cash flow hedge		  -    	 -   	  -   
6	 Unappropriated / Unremitted profits / (losses)		  1,241,433 	 -   	  709,866 
7	 Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third parties by	

consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CET1 capital	
of the consolidation group)		 -   	  -   	  -   

8	 CET1 before regulatory adjustments		  11,702,080 	  -   	  11,037,333 	
Common equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

9	 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liabilities)	  	 -   	  -   	  -   
10	 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liabilities)		  65,863 	  -   	  66,709 
11	 Shortfall of provisions against classified assets		  -   	  -   	  -   
12	 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from	

temporary differences (net of related tax liabilities)		  -   	  -   	  -   
13	 Defined - benefit pension fund net assets		 -   	  -   	  -   
14	 Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments		  -   	  -   	  -   
15	 Cash flow hedge reserve		  -   	  -   	  -   
16	 Investment in own shares / CET1 instruments		  -   	 -   	  -   
17	 Securitization gain on sale		  -   	  -   	  -   
18	 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries		  -   	  -   	  -   
19	 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of property / AFS		  375,193 	  -   	  -   
20	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities		  -   	  -   	  -   	

that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not	
hold more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)		  -   	  -   	  -   

21	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by the banking, financial	
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation	
(amount above 10% threshold)		  286,012 	  -   	  -   

22	 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10%	
threshold, net of related deferred tax liability)		  -   	  -   	  -   

23	 Amount exceeding 15% threshold		 -   	  -   	  -   
24	 - of which significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities		  -   	  -   	  -   
25	 - of which deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences		  -   	  -   	  -

-	 Tier 2 capital, which includes Subordinated debt/ Instruments, share premium of issuance of 
Subordinated debt/ Instruments, general provisions for loan losses (up to a maximum of 1.25 % 
of credit risk weighted assets), Net of tax reserves on revaluation of fixed assets and equity 
investments up to a maximum of 45% of the balance and foreign exchange translation reserves 
after all regulatory adjustments applicable on Tier-2 (refer to note 37.3)	

The required capital adequacy ratio (10% of the risk-weighted assets) is achieved by the Bank 
through improvement in the asset quality at the existing volume level, ensuring better recovery 
management and composition of asset mix with low risk. Banking operations are categorized as 
either trading book or banking book and risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified 
requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached 
to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. The total risk-weighted exposures comprise of the 
credit risk, market risk and operational risk.	

Basel-III Framework enables a more risk-sensitive regulatory capital calculation to promote long 
term viability of the Bank. As the Bank carry on the business on a wide area network basis, it is 
critical that it is able to continuously monitor the exposure across entire organization and aggregate 
the risks so as to take an integrated approach/view. Maximization of the return on risk-adjusted 
capital is the principal basis to be used in determining how capital is allocated within the Bank 
to particular operations or activities.	

The Bank remained compliant with all externally imposed capital requirements through out the 
year. Further, there has been no material change in the Bank’s management of capital during 
the year.



			2013	 2012		
Amount	 Amount subject	 Amount 			

to Pre Basel-III 			
treatment			

Rupees in '000

65	 Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy		  -  	  -   	  -   
66	 Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital		  -  	  -   	  -   			

-  	  -   	 -67	 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy	 (d)	    	  -   	  34,652 	
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2)	 (e=c+d)	  10,896,373 	  -   	  11,005,276 	

Total Risk Weighted Assets	 (i=f+g+h)	  45,454,232 		  28,580,999
68	 Total Credit Risk Weighted Assets	 (f)	  31,611,249 	  -   	  20,206,711
69	 Risk weighted assets in respect of amounts subject to Pre-Basel III Treatment		  31,611,249 	  -   	  20,206,711
70	 - of which: recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial	

and insurance entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common	
share capital of the entity 		  -   	  -   	  -   

71	 - of which: deferred tax assets		  -   	  -   	  -   
72	 - of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 		  -   	  -   	  -   
73	 - of which: [insert name of adjustment]		  -   	  -   	  -   
74	 Total Market Risk Weighted Assets	 (g)	  9,781,122 	  -   	  4,762,600 
75	 Total Operational Risk Weighted Assets	 (h)	  4,061,861 	  -   	  3,611,688 		

Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)
76	 CET1 to total RWA 	 (a/i)	 23.97% 	  -   	 38.38% 
77	 Tier-1 capital to total RWA	 (c/i)	 23.97% 	  -   	 38.38% 
78	 Total capital to RWA	 (e/i)	 23.97% 	  -   	 38.51% 
79	 Bank specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital	

conservation buffer plus any other buffer requirement)		 0.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 
80	 - of which: capital conservation buffer requirement		 0.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 
81	 - of which: countercyclical buffer requirement		 0.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 
82	 - of which: D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement		 0.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 
83	 CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)		 0.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 	

National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
84	 CET1 minimum ratio		 5.00% 	  -   	 0.00% 
85	 Tier 1 minimum ratio		 6.50% 	  -   	 0.00% 
86	 Total capital minimum ratio		 10.00% 	  -   	 10.00% 		

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)
87	 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities		  -   	  -   	  -   
88	 Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities		 -   	  -   	  -   
89	 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)		 -   	  -   	  -

	Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
90	 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to	

standardized approach (prior to application of cap)		  - 	  -	  -
91	 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized approach		  - 	  -	  -
92	 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to	

internal ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap)		 - 	  -	  -
93	 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach		 - 	  -	  -

26	 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital		  -   	  -   	  -   
27	 Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit		  -   	  -   	  -   
28	 Any other deduction specified by SBP (mentioned details)		  -   	  -   	  -   
29	 Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to		 -   	  -   	  -   	

cover deductions		  78,639 	  -   	  -   
30	 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (sum of 9 to 29)		  805,707 	 -   	  66,709 	

Common equity Tier 1	 (a)	  10,869,373 	  -   	  10,970,624

	Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
31	 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium		  -   	  -   	  -   
32	 - of which: Classified as equity 		  -   	  -   	  -   
33	 - of which: Classified as liabilities		  -   	  -   	  -   
34	 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and		 -   	  -   	  -   
35	 held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT 1)		 -   	  -   	  -   
36	 - of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out		  -   	  -   	  -   		

AT1 before regulatory adjustments		  -   	  -   	  -   

37	 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment)		  -   	  -   	  -   
38	 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments		  -   	  -   	  -   
39	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments 		  -   	  -   	  -   
40	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities	

that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not	
own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)		  -   	  -   	  -   

41	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and	
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation		  -   	  -   	  -   

42	 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital	
based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional period, remain	
subject to deduction from tier-1 capital		  -   	  -   	  -

43	 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2	
to cover deductions		  -	  - 	  - 

44	 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital		 -	  - 	  - 
45	 Additional Tier 1 capital 		 -	 - 	  - 
46	 Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy	 (b)	  -	  - 	  - 	

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) 	 (c=a+b)	  10,896,373	  - 	  10,970,624	

Tier 2 Capital
47	 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III		 -	  - 	  - 
48	 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from tier 2	

(Pre-Basel III instruments)		  -	  - 	  - 
49	 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries	

(amount allowed in group tier 2)		  -	  - 	  - 
50	 - of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out		  -	  - 	  - 
51	 General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25%	

of Credit Risk Weighted Assets		 -	  - 	  - 
52	 Revaluation Reserves		  -	  - 	  - 
53	 - of which: Revaluation reserves on Property		  -	  - 	  - 
54	 - of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS		 -	 - 	  34,652
55	 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves		 -	  - 	  - 
56	 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)		  -	  - 	  - 
57	 T2 before regulatory adjustments		  -	  - 	  34,652		

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments
58	 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital	

based on pre-Basel III treatment which, during transitional period, remain	
subject to deduction from tier-2 capital		  -   	  - 	  - 

59	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments		  -   	  - 	  - 
60	 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument 		 -   	  - 	  - 
61	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities	

that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not	
own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)		  -   	  - 	  - 

62	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial	
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation		  -   	  - 	  - 

63	 Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital		  -   	  - 	  - 
64	 Tier 2 capital (T2)		 -   	  - 	  -

			2013	 2012		
Amount	 Amount subject	 Amount 			

to Pre Basel-III 			
treatment			

Rupees in '000



Liabilities & Equity
Bills payable	 362,522 	  -
Borrowings	 16,758,368 	  -
Deposits and other accounts	 45,756,220 	  -
Sub-ordinated loans	 -   	  -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	 -   	  -
Deferred tax liabilities	 9,511 	  -
Other liabilities	 818,946 	  -
Total liabilities	  63,705,567 	  -	

Share capital/ Head office capital account	 10,000,000 	  -
Reserves	 460,647 	  -
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (losses)	 1,241,433 	  -
Minority Interest	  -   	  -
Surplus on revaluation of assets	 (375,193)	  -
Total equity	 11,326,887 	  -

Total liabilities & equity	 75,032,454 	  -

37.4	 Capital Structure Reconciliation		
As per publised	 Under		

 financial	  regulatory		
statements	 scope of			

 consolidation		
Step 1		

December 31, 2013		
Rupees in '000			

Assets		

Cash and balances with treasury banks	 3,518,863	  -	
Balanced with other banks	 190,823	  -	
Lending to financial institutions	 4,036,358	  -	
Investments	 36,785,844	  -	
Advances	 26,564,842	  -	
Operating fixed assets	 1,766,303	  -	
Deferred tax assets	  -   	  -	
Other assets	 2,169,421	  -	
Total assets	  75,032,454	  -

General provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital	 -   	  -   	 g
Fixed Assets	  1,683,526 	  -   	
Deferred Tax Assets		  -   	  -   		

- of which: DTAs excluding those arising from temporary differences	  -   	  -   	 h
- of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences exceeding regulatory	  -   	  -   	 i	

threshold
Other assets	  2,169,421 	  -   	
- of which: Goodwill	 -   	  -   	 j
- of which: Intangibles	  82,777 	  -   	 k
- of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets	 -   	  -   	 l
Total assets	  75,032,454 	  -   	     
Liabilities & Equity
Bills payable	  362,522 	  -   	
Borrowings 	  16,758,368 	  -   		
Deposits and other accounts	  45,756,220 	  -   
Sub-ordinated loans	  -   	  -   	
- of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1	  -   	  -   	 m
- of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2	  -   	  -   	 n
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	  -   	  -   		
Deferred tax liabilities	  9,511 	  -
- of which: DTLs related to goodwill	  -   	  -	 o
- of which: DTLs related to intangible assets	  16,914 	  -	 p
- of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets	  -   	  -	 q
- of which: other deferred tax liabilities	  (7,403)	  -	  r 
Other liabilities	  818,946 	  -		
Total liabilities	  63,705,567 	  -
Share capital	  10,000,000 	  -
- of which: amount eligible for CET1	  10,000,000 	  -	 s
- of which: Amount eligible for AT1	 -   	  -	 t
Reserves	  460,647 	  -		
- of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1(provide breakup)	  460,647 	  -	 u
- of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2	 -   	  -	 v
Unappropriated profit/ (losses)	  1,241,433 	  -	 w
Minority Interest	 -   	  -		
- of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1	  -   	  -	 x
- of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT1	  -   	  -	 y
- of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2	  -   	  -	 z
Surplus on revaluation of assets	  (375,193)	  -
- of which: Revaluation reserves on Property	  -   	  -	
- of which: Unrealized gains / (losses) on AFS	  -   	  -	 aa
- In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1)	  (375,193)	  -	 ab

Total Equity	  11,326,887 	  -	

Total liabilities & Equity	  75,032,454 	  -

Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks	  3,518,863 	  -   	
Balanced with other banks	  190,823 	  -   	
Lending to financial institutions 	  4,036,358 	  -   	
Investments	  36,785,844 	  -   		
- of which: Non-significant capital investments in capital of other financial	

institutions exceeding 10% threshold	  286,012 	  -   	 a
- of which: significant capital investments in financial sector entities exceeding	

regulatory threshold	 -   	  -   	 b
- of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold	 -   	  -   	 c
- of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument	  -   	  -   	 d
- of which: others (mention details)	  36,499,832 	  -   	 e
Advances	  26,564,842 	  -   		
Shortfall in provisions/ excess of total EL amount over eligible provisions	  -   	  -   	 f	

under IRB

		December 31, 2013	 Reference		
Step 2	 As per publised	 Under			

 financial	  regulatory 			
statements	 scope of					

 consolidation			

Rupees in '000



46	 Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy	  -   		

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) 	  10,896,373 		

Tier 2 Capital
47	 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III	  -   	 (n)
48	 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from tier 2 (Pre-Basel III instruments)	  -   	
49	 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed	

in group tier 2)	  -   	 (z)
50	 - of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out	 -   	
51	 General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of Credit		

Risk Weighted Assets	  -   	 (g)
52	 Revaluation Reserves eligible for Tier 2	  -   	
53	 - of which: portion pertaining to Property	  -   	 portion of (aa)
54	 - of which: portion pertaining to AFS securities	  -   		

55	 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves	  -   	 (v)
56	 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)	  -   	
57	 T2 before regulatory adjustments	 -   		

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments
58	 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel III	

treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital	  -   	
59	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments	  -   
60	 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument 	  -   	
61	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the		

scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share		
capital (amount above 10% threshold)	  -   	 (ae)

62	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities		
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation	  -   	 (af)

63	 Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital	  -   	
64	 Tier 2 capital (T2)	 -   
65	 Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy	  -   	
66	 Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital	  -   	
67	 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy	  -   		

Total capital (T1 + admissible T2)	  10,896,373 

	Source based	 Source based 	
on reference	 on reference 	
number from 	  number from	

step 2	 step 2			

Step 3	 Rupees in '000

	Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves

1	 Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP	  10,000,000 	 (s)
2	 Balance in Share Premium Account	  -     
3	 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares	  -     
4	 General/ Statutory Reserves	  460,647 	 (u)
5	 Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge	  -     	
6	 Unappropriated/unremitted profits/(losses)	  1,241,433 	 (w)
7	 Minority Interests arising from  CET1 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated		

bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group)	  -     	 (x)
8	 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments	 11,702,080 	

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
9	 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)	  -     	 (j) - (o)
10	 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)	 65,863 	 (k) - (p)
11	 Shortfall of provisions against classified assets	  -     	 (f)
12	 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences			

(net of related tax liability)	 -     	 {(h) - (r} * x%
13	 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 	  -     	 {(l) - (q)} * x%
14	 Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments	  -     	 (d)
15	 Cash flow hedge reserve	 -     	
16	 Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments	  -     	
17	 Securitization gain on sale 	 -     	
18	 Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries	  -     
19	 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of property/ AFS	 375,193 	 (ab)
20	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the	

scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital	
(amount above 10% threshold)	  286,012 	 (a) - (ac) - (ae)

21	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities that		
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)	  -     	 (b) - (ad) - (af)

22	 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of		
related tax liability)	  -     	 (i)

23	 Amount exceeding 15% threshold
24	 - of which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities	  -     
25	 - of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences	  -     
26	 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital	  -     
27	 Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit 	  -     	
28	 Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details)	  -

	Source based	 Source based 	
on reference	 on reference 	
number from 	  number from	

step 2	 step 2			

Step 3	 Rupees in '000

29	 Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions	  78,639 
30	 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1	 805,707 		

Common Equity Tier 1	 10,896,373 	

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
31	 Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium	 -   
32	 - of which: Classified as equity 	  -   	 (t)
33	 - of which: Classified as liabilities	  -   	 (m)
34	 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by third parties		

(amount allowed in group AT 1)	  -   	 (y)
35	 - of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out	  -   	
36	 AT1 before regulatory adjustments	  -   	

Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments
37	 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SBP specific adjustment)	  -   	
38	 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments	  -   
39	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments 	  -   	
40	 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the		

scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share		
capital (amount above 10% threshold)	  -   	 (ac)

41	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities		
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation	  -   	 (ad)

42	 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel III	
treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-1 capital	  -   

43	 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions	  -   	
44	 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital	  -   	
45	 Additional Tier 1 capital 	  -   



37.5	 Main features template of Regulatory Capital Instruments				

1	 Issuer	 Sindh Bank Ltd		
2	 Unique identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.)	 Un-rated		
3	 Governing law(s) of the instrument 	 Law applicable in Pakistan		

Regulatory treatment	
4	 -  Transitional Basel III rules	 Common Equity Tier 1	
5	 -  Post-transitional Basel III rules	 Common Equity Tier 1	
6	 -  Eligible at solo / group / group & solo	 Standalone	
7	 -  Instrument type	 Ordinary Shares	
8	 Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting date)	 10,000,000 	
9	 Par value of instrument	 10  	
10	 Accounting classification	  Shareholders equity	
11	 Original date of issuance	 October 29, 2010	
12	 Perpetual or dated	 Not applicable		
13	 Original maturity date	 No maturity		
14	 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval	 No		
15	 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount	 No		
16	 Subsequent call dates, if applicable	 No			

Coupons / Dividends	
17	 Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon	 Not applicable		
18	 coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark	 Not applicable		
19	 Existence of a dividend stopper	 No		
20	 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory	 Not applicable		
21	 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem	 No		
22	 Non-cumulative or cumulative	 Not applicable		
23	 Convertible or non-convertible	 Not applicable		
24	 If convertible, conversion trigger (s)	 Not applicable		
25	 If convertible, fully or partially	 Not applicable		
26	 If convertible, conversion rate	 Not applicable		
27	 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion	 Not applicable		
28	 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into	 Not applicable		
29	 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into	 Not applicable		
30	 Write-down feature	 Not applicable		
31	 If write-down, write-down trigger(s)	 Not applicable		
32	 If write-down, full or partial	 Not applicable		
33	 If write-down, permanent or temporary	 Not applicable		
34	 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism	 Not applicable		
35	 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument type immediately senior	 Not applicable		

to instrument			
36	 Non-compliant transitioned features	 Not applicable		
37	 If yes, specify non-compliant features	 Not applicable			

The instruments issued by the Bank till December 31, 2013 include only ordinary shares having face value of Rs. 10 each (Refer 
Note 18). Therefore, requirements other than those disclosed above with respect to main features of Regulatory Capital Instruments 
is not applicable in case of Sindh Bank Limited as at December 31, 2013.

37.6	 Capital Adequacy										

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan’s 
guidelines on capital adequacy was as follows:

			2013	 2012
 			 Capital 	  Risk	 Capital 	  Risk			

Requirements 	 Weighted	 Requirements 	 Weighted 
 				 Assets 		 Assets			

 (Rupees in '000)

	Credit Risk subject to standardized approach (Simple)		

Corporate portfolio		  2,493,381 	 24,933,813 	  1,409,417 	 14,094,171 	
Retail portfolio		  114,299 	  1,142,992 	  56,995 	  569,948 	
Past due Loans		  6,388 	  63,881 	  -   	  -   	
Banks portfolio		  155,478 	  1,554,780 	  238,845 	  2,388,454 	
Secured by residential property		  3,991 	  39,908 	  3,053 	  30,529 	
Investment in fixed assets		  168,353 	  1,683,526 	  149,010 	  1,490,095 	
Equity exposure risk in banking book		  150,819 	  1,508,189 	  110,131 	  1,101,307 	
All other assets		  68,416 	  684,160 	  53,221 	  532,208 	
Credit risk-weighted exposures 	 (a)	  3,161,125 	 31,611,249 	  2,020,672 	 20,206,712 		

Market Risk	
Interest rate risk		  684,521 	  6,845,205 	  322,928 	  3,229,275 	
Equity position risk		  274,209 	  2,742,085 	  151,228 	  1,512,275 	
Foreign exchange risk		  19,383 	  193,832 	  2,105 	  21,050 	
Market risk-weighted exposures	 (b)	  978,113 	  9,781,122 	  476,261 	  4,762,600 	

Operational Risk 	 (c)	  406,186 	  4,061,861 	  361,169 	  3,611,688 	

Total Risk-Weighted Exposures	(a)+(b)+(c)	  4,545,424 	 45,454,232 	  2,858,102 	 28,581,000 			

2013	 2012	
Capital Adequacy Ratio	

Total eligible regulatory capital held	 (e)		 10,896,373		 11,005,276 							

Total Risk Weighted Assets	 (i)	  	45,454,232 	  	28,581,000 	

Capital Adequacy Ratio	 (e) / (i)		 23.97%		 38.51%

* As SBP capital requirement of 10% (10% in 2012) is calculated on overall basis therefore, capital charge 
for credit risk is calculated after excluding capital requirements against market and operational risk from the 
total 

Types of exposure for which each agency is used :

	Exposure	 JCR-VIS	 PACRA	 FITCH 	  Moody 	

Corporate	 Ã	 Ã	

Banks	 Ã	 Ã	 Ã	 Ã

38	 RISK MANAGEMENT	
Under the Bank's risk management framework, the Board's Risk Management Committee (BRMC) is 
responsible for review and improvements of the risk policies of the Bank.  On a management level, the Bank 
as set up a Risk Management Division (RMD) to identify,  assess and monitor credit risk, market risk and 
operational risk in the activities of the Bank and take adequate measures to manage and control risks on 
timely basis.

38.1	 Credit risk	

Credit risk strives to maximize the Bank's risk adjusted rate of return by maintaining credit risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters.  The effective management of credit risk is a critical component of a 
comprehensive approach to risk management and essential to the long term success of any banking 
organization.



		The Bank's lending function will primarily be focused on small and medium sized secured loans in agriculture, 
SME and consumer products. Large corporate, commercial and industrial loans will be provided on selective 
basis whose policy will be subject to review as and when required.	

Under RMD, the Credit Risk Management Department (CRMD) is responsible to ensure that 
credit risk stays within the parameters set by the Board, and to set up and monitor system 
parameters for identifying risks, monitoring of these risks and early warning systems. RMD 
monitors credit at the portfolio basis and reports to the CEO and the BRMC on a regular basis.

38.2	 Segments by class of business

38.2.1	Segment information	
Segmental information is presented below in respect of the class / nature of business and segment 
by distribution of Advances, Deposits & Contingencies.

Chemical and pharmaceuticals	  -   	  -   	  16,579 	 0.05%	  4,009 	 0.01%
Agri-business	  527,113 	 2.73%	  872,641 	 2.77%	  -   	  -   
Manufacture of textile	  9,991 	 0.05%	  106,446 	 0.34%	  98,901 	 0.18%
Cement	  175,594 	 0.91%	  -   	  -   	  1,319 	  -   
Transport, Storage and Communication	  -   	  -   	  89,499 	 0.28%	  21,169 	 0.04%
Importers / Exporters	  41,753 	 0.22%	  229,168 	 0.73%	  -   	  -   
Whole sale and retail trade	  12,579 	 0.07%	  951,426 	 3.02%	  168,018 	 0.31%
Minning and quarrying	  -   	  -   	  66,004 	 0.21%	  3,000 	 0.01%
Petroleum Products	  580,804 	 3.01%	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Manufacture of basic iron and steel	  1,059,481 	 5.49%	  52,894 	 0.17%	  -   	  -   
Sugar	 7,022,746 	 36.42%	  434,515 	 1.38%	  343,467 	 0.63%
Shoes and leather garments	  -   	  -   	  1,004 	 0.00%	  -   	  -   
Automobile and transportation 						
    equipment	  51,998 	 0.27%	  -   	  -   	  4,051 	 0.01%
Financial	  703,913 	 3.65%	  140,540 	 0.45%	  53,006,859 	 96.65%
Rice	  -   	  -   	  48,870 	 0.16%	  -   	  -   
Construction	  1,007,964 	 5.23%	  850,642 	 2.70%	  153,987 	 0.28%
Public Sector - Provincial								

Government Funds / Departments	  -   	  -   	  9,307,655 	 29.58%	  -   	  -

	2012		
Advances (Gross)	 Deposits	 Contingencies and 				

commitments		
(Rupees in 	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent		

'000)	 '000)	 '000)

	Chemical and pharmaceuticals	  -   	  -   	  97,093 	 0.21%	  -   	  -   	
Agri-business	  1,212,772 	 4.57%	  1,336,715 	 2.92%	  -   	  -   	
Manufacture of textile	  238,596 	 0.90%	  204,343 	 0.45%	  1,194,662 	 4.64%	
Cement	  340,937 	 1.28%	  -   	 0.00%	  331,083 	 1.29%	
Transport, Storage and Communication	  181,713 	 0.68%	  2,304,517 	 5.04%	  24,932 	 0.10%	
Importers / Exporters	  115,518 	 0.43%	  252,352 	 0.55%	  70,024 	 0.27%	
Whole sale and retail trade	  17,519 	 0.07%	  1,663,020 	 3.63%	  60,267 	 0.23%	
Minning and quarrying	  -   	  -   	  6,427 	 0.01%	  -   	  -   	
Petroleum Products	  144,169 	 0.54%	  69,408 	 0.15%	  5,000 	 0.02%	
Manufacture of basic iron and steel	  1,585,975 	 5.97%	  14,463 	 0.03%	  268,326 	 1.04%	
Sugar	  9,731,733 	 36.63%	  322,942 	 0.71%	  368,158 	 1.43%	
Shoes and leather garments	  -   	  -   	  65,677 	 0.14%	  -   	  -   	
Automobile and transportation 								

equipment	  1,020,398 	 3.84%	  561,145 	 1.23%	  79,914 	 0.31%	
Financial	  1,280,038 	 4.82%	  2,088,040 	 4.56%	  21,082,591 	 81.84%	
Rice	  10,000 	 0.04%	  121,689 	 0.27%	  -   	  -   	
Construction	  1,013,879 	 3.82%	  2,224,202 	 4.86%	  1,131,396 	 4.39%	
Public Sector - Provincial			

Government Funds / Departments	  -   	  -   	  7,891,352 	 17.25%	  -   	  -   	
Food	  5,174,076 	 19.48%	  9,516 	 0.02%	  -   	  -   	
Insurance	  -   	  -   	  4,413 	 0.01%	  -   	  -   	
Power, Electric , Gas	  1,043,651 	 3.93%	  37,908 	 0.08%	  319,752 	 1.24%	
Education	  1,751,953 	 6.60%	  397,293 	 0.87%	  -   	  -   	
Individuals	  139,817 	 0.53%	  6,388,895 	 13.96%	  -   	  -   	
Others	  1,562,098 	 5.87%	  19,694,810 	 43.04%	  823,617 	 3.20%	
Total	  26,564,842 	 100.0%	  45,756,220 	 100.0%	  25,759,722 	 100.0%

	2013		
Advances (Gross)	 Deposits	 Contingencies and 				

commitments		
(Rupees in 	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent		

'000)		 '000)		 '000)

		2012		
Restated				

Profit before	 Total assets	 Net assets	 Contingencies  		
taxation	 employed	 employed	 andcommitments		

(Rupees in '000)		
Pakistan	  1,285,631	  92,291,098	  11,088,188	 54,845,586

38.3	 Market risk	
Market Risk is the risk that the value of ‘on’ or ‘off’ balance sheet positions will be adversely 
affected by movements in equity and interest rate markets, currency exchange rates and commodity 
prices.	

The market risk management organization in the Bank comprises of the Board of Directors, 
BRMC, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), RMD and within the RMD the Market and Asset 
Liability Risk Management Department.

38.3.1	Foreign exchange risk	

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the Bank may suffer losses as a result of adverse exchange 
rate movements during a period in which it has an open position, either in the form of a balance 
sheet asset or liability account, or off balance sheet item.  Likewise foreign exchange settlement 
risk is the risk of loss when a bank in a foreign exchange transaction pays the currency it sold 
but does not receive the currency it bought. FX settlement failures can arise from counter party 
default, operational problems, market l iquidity constraints and other factors.

		2012		
(Rupees in 	 Percent	 Rupees in 	 Percent	 Rupees in	 Percent		

'000)		 '000)		 '000)	
Public / Government	  5,185,552 	 26.89%	 18,369,140 	 58.37%	  47,528,323 	 86.66%	
Private	  14,096,336 	 73.11%	 13,100,512 	 41.63%	  7,317,263 	 13.34%	
Total	  19,281,888 	 100.00%	 31,469,652 	 100%	  54,845,586 	 100%

38.2.3	 Geographical Segment Analysis								
2013		

Profit before	 Total assets	 Net assets	 Contingencies  		
taxation	 employed	 employed	 and commitments		

(Rupees in '000)	
Pakistan	  953,400 	  75,032,454 	  11,326,887 	  25,759,722

38.2.2	Segment by Sector	 2013				
(Rupees	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent		
 in '000)		  '000)		  '000)

	Public / Government	  4,999,168 	 18.82%	  20,867,155 	 45.61%	  12,984,327 	 50.41%	
Private	  21,565,674 	 81.18%	  24,889,065 	 54.39%	  12,775,395 	 49.59%	
Total	  26,564,842 	 100.00%	  45,756,220 	100.00%	  25,759,722 	100.00%

Food	 5,185,552 	 26.89%	  -   	  -   	  -   	  - 
Insurance	  -   	  -   	  738 	  -   	  -   	  -   
Power, Electric , Gas	  939,319 	 4.87%	  204,834 	 0.65%	  900,701 	 1.64%
Education	  -   	  -   	  720,367 	 2.29%	  -   	  -
Individuals	  1,568,385 	 8.13%	  3,650,123 	 11.60%	  -   	  -
Others	 394,696 	 2.05%	  13,725,707 	 43.62%	  140,105 	 0.26%
Total	 19,281,888 	 100%	  31,469,652 	 100%	  54,845,586 	 100%

	2012		
Advances (Gross)	 Deposits	 Contingencies and 				

commitments		
(Rupees in 	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent	 (Rupees in	 Percent		

'000)	 '000)	 '000)



38
.3

.5
	

M
is

m
at

ch
 o

f 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

se
n

si
ti

ve
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d
 li

ab
ili

ti
es

	
In

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

ris
k 

is
 th

e 
ris

k 
th

at
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
t w

ill
 fl

uc
tu

at
e 

du
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

. T
he

 B
an

k 
is

 e
xp

os
ed

 to
 in

te
re

st
 / 

m
ar

k-
u

p
 r

a
te

 r
is

k 
a

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt 

o
f 

m
is

m
a

tc
h

e
s 

o
r 

g
a

p
s 

in
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 /
 m

a
rk

-u
p

 b
a

se
d

 a
ss

e
ts

 a
n

d
 li

a
b

ili
tie

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

tu
re

 o
r 

re
-p

ri
ce

 in
 a

 g
iv

e
n

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

T
h

e
 B

a
n

k 
m

a
n

a
g

e
s 

th
is

 r
is

k 
b

y 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 /

 r
e

-p
ri

ci
n

g
 o

f 
a

ss
e

ts
 a

n
d

 li
a

b
ili

tie
s.

 T
h

e
 B

a
n

k 
is

 n
o

t 
e

xc
e

ss
iv

e
ly

 e
xp

o
se

d
 t

o
 in

te
re

st
/m

a
rk

-u
p

 r
a

te
 r

is
k 

a
s 

its
 a

ss
e

ts
 a

n
d

 li
a

b
ili

tie
s 

a
re

 r
e

-p
ri

ce
d

 f
re

q
u

e
n

tly
. 

T
h

e
 A

ss
e

ts
 a

n
d

 L
ia

b
ili

tie
s 

C
o

m
m

itt
e

e
 (

A
L

C
O

) 
o

f 
th

e
 B

a
n

k 
m

o
n

ito
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
s 

th
e

 in
te

re
st

 r
a

te
 r

is
k 

w
ith

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
 o

f 
lim

iti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
of

ita
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
B

an
k.

A
ss

et
s	

			
			

			
			

	
C

as
h 

an
d 

ba
la

nc
es

 w
ith

 tr
ea

su
ry

 b
an

ks
		

3,
51

8,
86

3	
63

,2
65

	
13

7,
88

4	
15

,4
25

	
19

,2
41

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 3

,2
83

,0
48

 
Ba

la
nc

es
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 b
an

ks
	

4.
19

%
	

 1
90

,8
23

 	
 1

80
,1

02
	

 -	
-	

-  
 	

-  
 	

-  
 	

-  
 	

-  
 	

-  
 	

10
,7

21
 

Le
nd

in
gs

 to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
	

10
.0

5%
	

4,
03

6,
35

8	
-	

2,
50

0,
00

0	
1,

00
0,

00
0	

53
6,

35
8 

	
-  

 	
-  

 	
-  

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
	

11
.0

1%
	

36
,7

85
,8

44
	

12
,5

59
,5

19
	

19
,8

08
,5

48
	

2,
02

3,
27

1	
-  

 	
-  

 	
-  

 	
-	

-  
	

 - 
  	

 2
,3

94
,5

06
 

Ad
va

nc
es

	
11

.6
2%

	
 2

6,
56

4,
84

2 
	

 2
1,

36
2,

03
3 

	
 1

,3
90

,9
72

 	
 1

,9
16

,8
91

 	
 1

,3
19

,2
83

 	
 1

1,
78

9 
	

 7
,4

14
 	

 1
4,

16
4 

	
 4

97
,9

62
 	

 4
3,

54
1 

	
 7

94
 

O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s	
	

 2
,1

69
,4

21
 	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 2
,1

69
,4

21
 		

	
 7

3,
26

6,
15

1 
	

 3
4,

16
4,

91
9 

	
 2

3,
83

7,
40

4 
	

 4
,9

55
,5

87
 	

 1
,8

74
,8

82
 	

 1
1,

78
9 

	
 7

,4
14

 	
 1

4,
16

4 
	

 4
97

,9
62

 	
 4

3,
54

1 
	

 7
,8

58
,4

90
 

Li
ab

ili
tie

s	
			

			
			

			
Bi

lls
 p

ay
ab

le
		

 3
62

,5
22

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 3

62
,5

22
 

Bo
rro

w
in

gs
 fr

om
 F

in
an

ci
al

 In
st

itu
tio

ns
	

9.
54

%
	

 1
6,

75
8,

36
8 

	
 1

6,
12

9,
36

8 
	

 1
5,

00
0 

	
 5

4,
00

0 
	

 5
60

,0
00

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  
D

ep
os

its
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

s	
5.

95
%

	
 4

5,
75

6,
22

0 
	

 1
7,

48
0,

15
9 

	
 4

,3
24

,1
02

 	
 2

,1
80

,6
47

 	
 7

,1
90

,3
39

 	
 1

1,
82

8 
	

 2
5,

90
0 

	
 2

00
 	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 1
4,

54
3,

04
5 

O
th

er
 li

ab
ili

tie
s	

	
 8

18
,9

46
 	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 8
18

,9
46

 		
	

 6
3,

69
6,

05
6 

	
 3

3,
60

9,
52

7 
	

 4
,3

39
,1

02
 	

 2
,2

34
,6

47
 	

 7
,7

50
,3

39
 	

 1
1,

82
8 

	
 2

5,
90

0 
	

 2
00

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 1

5,
72

4,
51

3 
O

n-
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t g

ap
 		

 9
,5

70
,0

95
 	

 5
55

,3
92

 	
 1

9,
49

8,
30

2 
	

 2
,7

20
,9

40
 	

 (5
,8

75
,4

57
)	

 (3
9)

	
 (1

8,
48

6)
	

 1
3,

96
4 

	
 4

97
,9

62
 	

 4
3,

54
1 

	
 (7

,8
66

,0
23

)		
			

			
			

			

O
ff-

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t f
in

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts
			

			
			

			
		

Pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 re
sa

le
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
		

 5
37

,6
67

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
53

7,
66

7 
	

  -
   

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
-  

 	
-  

 	 
Sa

le
 a

nd
 re

pu
rc

ha
se

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

		
 1

5,
08

7,
96

6 
	

 1
5,

08
7,

96
6 

	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  
O

ff-
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t g

ap
		

 1
5,

62
5,

63
3 

	
 1

5,
08

7,
96

6 
	

 - 
  	

 - 
  	

 5
37

,6
67

 	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
 - 

  	
			

			
			

			
	

To
ta

l Y
ie

ld
 / 

In
te

re
st

 R
is

k 
Se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 G
ap

			
 1

5,
64

3,
35

8 
	

 1
9,

49
8,

30
2 

	
 2

,7
20

,9
40

 	
 (5

,3
37

,7
90

)	
 (3

9)
	

 (1
8,

48
6)

	
 1

3,
96

4 
	

 4
97

,9
62

 	
 4

3,
54

1 
	

 (7
,8

66
,0

23
)

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Yi
el

d 
/ I

nt
er

es
t R

is
k 

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 G

ap
		

 	
15

,6
43

,3
58

 	
 3

5,
14

1,
66

0 
	

 3
7,

86
2,

60
0 

	
 3

2,
52

4,
81

0 
	 3

2,
52

4,
77

1 
	

 3
2,

50
6,

28
5 

	 3
2,

52
0,

24
9	

 3
3,

01
8,

21
0 

	
 3

3,
06

1,
75

1 
	

25
,1

95
,7

28
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
w

ith
 to

ta
l a

ss
et

s:
			

			
			

			
		

As
se

ts
 a

s 
pe

r a
bo

ve
		

 7
3,

26
6,

15
1 

			
			

			
	

Fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

		
 1

,7
66

,3
03

 		
			

			
		

As
se

ts
 a

s 
pe

r S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f F
in

an
ci

al
 P

os
iti

on
		

 7
5,

03
2,

45
4 

			
			

			
			

			
			

			
			

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
w

ith
 to

ta
l l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s:
		

Li
ab

ilit
ie

s 
as

 p
er

 a
bo

ve
		

 6
3,

69
6,

05
6 

			
			

			
	

D
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
lia

bi
lit

y	
	

 9
,5

11
 		

			
			

		
Li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

as
 p

er
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f F

in
an

ci
al

 P
os

iti
on

	
 	

63
,7

05
,5

67
 

O
n-

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t f
in

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts
	

---
---

- -
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
 (R

up
ee

s 
in

 '0
00

) -
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
Y

ie
ld

 / 
In

te
re

st
 r

at
e

To
ta

l

U
pt

o 
1 

m
on

th
O

ve
r 

1 
to

 3
m

on
th

s
O

ve
r 

3 
to

 6
m

on
th

s
O

ve
r 

6 
m

on
th

s
 to

 1
 y

ea
r

O
ve

r 
1 

to
 

2 
ye

ar
O

ve
r 

2 
to

 
3 

ye
ar

O
ve

r 
3 

to
 5

 y
ea

r
O

ve
r 

5 
to

 1
0 

ye
ar

A
bo

ve
 

10
 y

ea
rs

N
on

-in
te

re
st

 
be

ar
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts

 E
xp

os
ed

 to
 Y

ie
ld

 / 
In

te
re

st
 r

is
k

20
13

38.3.2	 Equity position risk	

Equity position risk in trading book arises due to change in prices of shares or levels of equity 
indices.						

The Bank’s equity and mutual fund exposure is managed with the objective to be in the SBP 
limits for overall investment and per scrip exposure. In addition, there are internal limits for 
trading position as well as stop loss limits, dealer limits, future contracts limits and continuous 
funding system limits.

38.3.3	 Yield / interest rate risk	

Interest rate risk reflects the degree of vulnerability of an organization to adverse changes in 
interest rates. Such risk taking is normal in financial institution and could be an important source 
of profit earning. However, excess interest rate risks might create a serious threat to a Bank’s 
returns and capital base.  ALCO, Treasury Division and RMD monitor the repricing / mismatch 
risks, basis risks, yield curve risks, and option risks on a continuous basis to minimize the 
interest rate risk.

38.3.4	 Price risk	

Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. 
It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the market price of a security that the Bank owns. 
It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Transactions 
in equity securities are subject to systematic and unsystematic risks. In order to counter these 
the BRMC has laid down the limits of various investments, Treasury Division and the RMD 
monitor all investments on a daily basis.

		As at December 31, 2013			
Assets	 Liabilities	 Off-balance 	 Net foreign				

sheet items 	 currency					
exposure		

----------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------	
Pakistan Rupee	  74,494,645	  62,125,537 	  (844,082)	  11,525,026 	
United States Dollar	  432,322	  1,448,995 	  832,062 	  (184,611)	
Great Britain Pound	  52,698	  73,091 	  12,020 	  (8,373)	
Euro	  49,756	  57,944 	  -   	  (8,188)	
Japanese Yen	  3,033	  -   	  -   	  3,033 		

 75,032,454	  63,705,567  	  -   	  11,326,887 							

As at December 31, 2012			
Assets	 Liabilities	 Off-balance	 Net foreign 				

sheet items	  currency		
 				 exposure		

----------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------------	
Pakistan Rupee	  91,592,444 	  79,784,528 	  (739,164)	  11,068,752 	
United States Dollar	  616,630 	  1,329,090 	  727,145 	  14,685 	
Great Britain Pound	  43,706 	  43,998 	  5,610 	  5,318 	
Euro	  37,278 	  45,295 	  6,409 	  (1,608)	
Japanese Yen	  1,041 	  -   	  -   	  1,041 		

 92,291,099 	      81,202,911 	  -      	 11,088,188
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President & Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman of  the Board	 Director	 Director

38.5	 Operational risk																

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people 
and systems or from external events; this includes legal risk, but excludes strategic and reputational 
risk.																

The Operational Risk Management Department (ORMD) works under the RMD and its 
responsibilities include identifying, monitoring, measuring and managing operational risks assumed 
by the Bank. In adherence to industry best practice, the key functions of the ORMD are the 
operational risk policy and planning function, operational risk assessment function, operational 
risk measurement and analytics function and operational risk monitoring, mitigation and control 
function.															

39	 GENERAL															

39.1	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee.					

40	 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE												

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on Feb 17, 2014.
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NOTICE OF THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE  is hereby given that the Third  Annual General Meeting of Sindh Bank Limited will be held on 
25th March, 2014 at 11.30 a.m  at the Avari Hotel, Lahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1-	 To confirm the minutes of Second Annual General  Meeting held on  25th March 2013.
2-	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Bank for the period ended 31st 

December, 2013, together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon and pass necessary 
Resolutions in this regard.

3-	 To consider appointment of Auditors of the Bank for the year 2014 and fix their remuneration.  

Special Business:

4-	 To grant post fecto approval to the payment of remuneration fixed by the Board for the non-
executive directors, in terms of SBP Prudential Regulations # G-1C(2).	

A statement of material facts under section 160(1) (b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating 	
to aforesaid special business to be transacted is appended below

5-	 Any other business with the permission of the chair.

By order of the Board

_______________
Shamsuddin Khan
Company Secretary
Karachi-March 04, 2014

NOTES:

(i)	 All members are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting.
(ii)	 A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her 

proxy to attend and vote.
(iii)	 The instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other commission (if any) under which it 

is signed, or notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority to be effective must 
be deposited at the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 hours before the time 
for holding the Meeting.

(iv)	 Members are advised to bring their Computerized National Identity Cards along with CD 
Participant ID and account number at the meeting venue.

(v)	 If any proxies are granted by any such shareholders, the same must be accompanied with 
attested copies of the CNIC/Authority Letter of the grantors and the signatures on the proxy	
form should be the same as that appearing on the CNIC/Authority Letter.

The Share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 25th March, 2014 to  31st March, 2014 
(both days inclusive). CDC Transaction IDs received in order at the at the Registered Office of the 
Company up to the close of business on 24th March, 2014 will be considered as on time for the
determination of entitlement of shareholder to attend and vote at the meeting.

Members are required to notify immediately changes, if any, in their registered address.

Statement under section 160(1)(b)

The meeting fee payable to the non-executive members of the Board was approved by the Board of 
Directors in term of Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Bank.  This meeting fee required 
approval of the shareholders in Annual General Meeting in terms of Regulation G-1(C-2) of Prudential 
Regulations for Corporate/Commercial Banking issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.  The non-executive 
members of the Board are interested in the payment of fee and executive member of the Board has no 
interest in the matter.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS 	

Number of	 Size of Shareholding	 Total 	
Shareholders	 Rs. 10 each	 Shares held	

7	 1	 to	 100	 7	
1	 999,995,001	 to	 1,000,000,000	 999,999,993	
8				 1,000,000,000

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS UNDER
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE		

Category 	 Categories of Shareholders	 Number of 	 Category wise	 (%) 	
No.		 Shares held	 No. of share					

holders	
1	 Individuals					
2	 Investment Companies					
3	 Joint Stock Companies					
4	 Directors			 7		 -		

Mr. Afzal Ghani		 1		
Mr. M. Sohail  Khan Rajput		 1			
Mr. Muhammad Shahid Murtaza	 1		
Mr. Muhammad Naeem Sahgal	 1		
Mr. Tajammal Husain Bokharee*	 1		
Mr. M. Naim Farooqui*		 1		
Mr. Muhammad Bilal Sheikh		 1	

5	 Executives					
6	 NIT / ICP					
7	 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties				
8	 Banks, DFIs, NBFIs, Insurance companies, Modarabas& Mutual Funds 			
9	 Foreign Investors					

10	 Co-operative Societies					
11	 Charitable Trusts					
12	 Others - Government of Sindh, through its 		

Finance Department		 999,999,993	 1	 100		
Total		 1,000,000,000	 8	 100

Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting interest in the listed company

Total Paid-up Capital of the company	 1,000,000,000 shares
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company	 100,000,000 shares		

Name(s) of Shareholder(s)	 No. of Shares held	 Percentage 			
(%) 

Government of Sindh, through its	 999,999,993	 100 
Finance Department

* One qualifying share of the Bank was transfered in favour of the directors on January 3rd, 2014.
















